
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Human Resources Lewis Patterson


Approval of staff's recommendation to renew a contract with Midwest Employers Casualty Company, as outlined in "Option 2", for a 


period of one year, beginning July 1, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2015, in the amount of $93,116.00, and authorization for the Chairman 


to sign the contract and related documents.


Fayette County's Workers Compensation coverage is a "self-insured" arrangement utilizing third parties for excess insurance and claims 


administration.  The Sadler Group serves as the broker between the third parties and Fayette County.  The County has utilized Midwest 


Employee Casualty Company for excess insurance and claims service since 2000.  The County switched from Underwriters' Safety and 


Claims, Inc. to Affinity Service Group on January 1, 2011 as the third party administrator for workers compensation claims administration. 


The Sadler Group's broker, Quadrant Insurance Managers, contacted the only four provides of this type of coverage in the United States: 


Midwest Employers Casualty Company, Safety National Insurance Company, Meadowbrooke, and Chartis / AIG Insurance Company.  


The only quote received from from the County's current carrier, Midwest Employers Casualty Company.  The other three either refused to 


quote or stated they could not match current pricing since it would be a new account for them.  It should be noted that this industry only 


enters into one-year contracts due to the nature of the coverage being provided. 


 


Staff recommends a one-year renewal with Midwest Employers Casualty Company for excess insurance with a specific retention of 


$550,000.00 at a rate of .2680 per $100 of payroll, at an annual cost of $93,116.00, as listed under Option 2 on the attached backup.  


This is a slight reduction from the current rate of $98,528.00 which is a result of changing the specific retention from $500,000 to 


$550,00.00.


Approval of staff's recommendation to renew a contract with Midwest Employers Casualty Company, as outlined in "Option 2", for a 


period of one year, beginning July 1, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2015, in the amount of $93,116.00, and authorization for the Chairman 


to sign the contract and related documents.


Funds are available in the Workers Compensation Self-Insurance Fund.


Yes Thursday, June 13, 2013


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Similar to last year's request, this request is budgeted and is under the County Administrator's authority to approve.  However, since 


there was only one vendor who responded, the County Administrator felt it prudent to bring this matter up in a public meeting for full 


disclosure and for the Board of Commissioners approval.


Thursday, June 26, 2014 Consent



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #8

















		Human Resources- 2014 Midwest Contract Agenda Request File

		Human Resources- 2014 Midwest Contract Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Information Systems Phil Freider


Approval of staff's recommendation to grant an easement to AT&T in order to install a fiber cable to the Fayette County Public Library.


AT&T has requested the ability to place a fiber cable to the Fayette County Public Library.  Fayette County is requested to grant an 


easement to AT&T in order to lay the fiber cable. 


 


The placement of the cable will be by directional boring, meaning there will be a minimal amount of ground disturbance.  Special 


stipulations in the agreement restricts the easement to buried cable, conduit and markers. 


 


Supporting documentation is attached for review.


Approval of staff's recommendation to grant an easement to AT&T in order to install a fiber cable to the Fayette County Public Library.


No funding is required.  The agreement calls for AT&T to pay Fayette County $1.00 for the easement.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 26, 2014 Consent



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #10







1


Floyd Jones


From: Dennis Davenport <dadaven@bellsouth.net>


Sent: Tuesday, June 17, 2014 8:18 AM


To: Dennis S. Dutton; Floyd Jones


Cc: Pete Frisina


Subject: RE: AT&T Cable Easement to the County Library


This requires action by the Board of Commissioners. 


 


Dennis A. Davenport 


McNally, Fox, Grant & Davenport, P.C. 


100 Habersham Drive 


Fayetteville, Georgia   30214 


(770) 461-2223 


 


CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:  This e-mail message and all attachments may contain privileged and 


confidential information intended solely for the use of the addressee.  If you are not the intended recipient, you 


are hereby notified that any reading, disseminating, distributing, copying, or other use of this message or any 


attachment is strictly prohibited.  If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender 


immediately by telephone or by replying to the sender and deleting this message and all copies thereof.  Thank 


you. 
 


From: Dennis S. Dutton [mailto:dsdutton@fayettecountyga.gov]  


Sent: Monday, June 16, 2014 7:02 PM 


To: dadaven@bellsouth.net; Floyd Jones 


Cc: Pete Frisina 
Subject: FW: AT&T Cable Easement to the County Library 


 


Gentlemen: 


 


I have scanned and attached a copy of the letter for an easement survey for BellSouth Telecommunications, LLC d\b\a 


AT&T Georgia for 5.00 foot wide easement from Stonewall Avenue to the County Library.   


 


 


 


Sincerely,  


                  


Dennis S. Dutton                                                                                                   


Zoning Administrator 


Fayette County Planning & Zoning Dept. 


Planning Commission Secretary 


Phone:  770-305-5161 


Fax: 770-305-5258 or 770-305-5305  
 


 























1


Floyd Jones


Subject: FW: More information -- Changeover in Internet Access with increased bandwdith


 


From: Chris Snell  


Sent: Thursday, June 19, 2014 4:03 PM 
To: Pete Frisina 


Cc: Chris Snell (csnell@fayettecountyga.gov) 
Subject: FW: More information -- Changeover in Internet Access with increased bandwdith 


 


 


Pete,  


 Below is the correspondence from  the specifics on the  bandwidth…. Thanks! 


 


Christeen Snell 
Public Library Director 
Fayette County Public Library 
1821 Heritage Park Way 
Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 
Email:csnell@fayettecountyga.gov 
Telephone Number-770-305-5333 
Fax Number-770-719-5569 
www.fayettecountyga.gov 
 


 


 


 


 


 


Supervisors, 


 


AT&T will be shipping new routers here to Griffin for the new Internet service.  Additionally, AT&T will be sending an 


engineer to review the AT&T access to your library building and if any construction is necessary to provide the new fiber 


connection for Internet Access.  I don’t think any construction will be necessary but AT&T needs to check.  Daniel and I 


will visit each library to install the new router and, hopefully, will be there when the engineer appears to review the 


AT&T access.  All good news, things are moving forward to get greater Internet speeds for each library. 


 


Additionally, the E-rate application for next year’s Internet Access, the period of July 1, 2014 thru June 30, 2015, includes 


increased bandwidth speeds; 60Mbps for Griffin, Fayetteville, and Peachtree City and 50Mbps for Jackson, Barnesville, 


Forsyth, Zebulon, and Tyrone.  I’ll keep you informed as we know more about this changeover. 


 


Again, please keep me informed if any AT&T personnel appear at your library or if you receive any emails about the 


various changeover steps. 


 


Thanks for your help. 


 


Jim Tingen 


 







2


From: Jim Tingen [mailto:jtingen@frrls.net]  


Sent: Wednesday, March 19, 2014 9:21 AM 


To: Chris Snell; Debbie Melton (debbie@frrls.net); Donn V. Taylor (taylordon@frrls.net); Jill Prouty (jillprouty@peachtree-
city.org); Kelly Hughes (khughes@frrls.net); Patty Newland (pnewland@frrls.net); Rosemary Bunn rosemary@frrls.net 


Cc: Carrie Zeiger (czeiger@frrls.net); Daniel Williams (administrator@frrls.net) 
Subject: Changeover in Internet Access with increased bandwdith 


 


Supervisors, 


 


Currently we have Internet Access through AT&T under a State-wide Erate grant from Georgia Public Library 


Service.  This service will be ending July 1, 2014. 


 


We had filled an Erate grant for replacing this Internet Access, also with AT&T, with additional bandwidth.   Within the 


last few days it has been approved and AT&T will be working on installing fiber access to each library building, which will 


provide greater bandwidth possibilities. 


 


If you should see any AT&T personnel visiting your library, please call me so I can keep up with their progress around the 


region. 


 


The first table below shows each library and current Internet Access levels.  The second table shows the increased 


bandwidth that will be installed for this new Internet Access. 


 


As pricing drops we are looking at increasing the levels of bandwidth beyond the levels shown in the second table.  I will 


keep you informed as we work things out with AT&T for these increased bandwidth levels. 


 


If you have any questions or concerns, please email or call me.  Remember, if you see any AT&T personnel, please call 


me. 


 


Thanks and hurrah for increased bandwidth!!! 


 


Jim Tingen 


 


Current Bandwidth at each library: 


Library name Address Current Environment 


Griffin-Spalding County Library 800 Memorial Drive 


Griffin, GA  30223 


2 T-1 lines, 3.0MB 


Jackson-Butts County Public 


Library 


436 E College Street 


Jackson, GA  30233 


1 T-1 line, 1.5MB 


Barnesville-Lamar County Library 401 Thomaston Street 


Barnesville, GA  30204 


1 T-1 line, 1.5MB 


Monroe County Library 62 W Main Street 


Forsyth, GA  31029 


1 T-1 line, 1,5MB 


Fayette County Public Library 1821 Heritage Park Way 


Fayetteville, GA   30214 


2 T-1 lines, 3.0MB 


Peachtree City Library 201 Willowbend Road 


Peachtree City, GA   30269 


3 T-1 lines, 4.6MB 


J. Joel Edwards Public Library 7077 Hwy 19 South 


Zebulon, GA  30295 


1 T-1 line, 1.5MB 


Tyrone Public Library 143 Commerce Drive 


Tyrone, GA  30290 


1 T-1 line, 1.5MB 


 
New Bandwidth for each library: 







3


Library name Address New Bandwidth 


Griffin-Spalding County Library 800 Memorial Drive 


Griffin, GA  30223 


20MB 


Jackson-Butts County Public 


Library 


436 E College Street 


Jackson, GA   30233 


10MB 


Barnesville-Lamar County Library 401 Thomaston Street 


Barnesville, GA  30204 


10MB 


Monroe County Library 62 W Main Street 


Forsyth, GA  31029 


10MB 


Fayette County Public Library 1821 Heritage Park Way 


Fayetteville, GA  30214 


20MB 


Peachtree City Library 201 Willowbend Road 


Peachtree City, GA  30269 


20MB 


J. Joel Edwards Public Library 7077 Hwy 19 South 


Zebulon, GA  30295 


10MB 


Tyrone Public Library 143 Commerce Drive 


Tyrone, GA  30290 


10MB 


 


 
 


 





		Information Systems- Cable Easement Agenda Request File

		Information Systems- Cable Easement Backup

		Information Systems- Cable Easement Backup-1

		Information Systems- Cable Easement Backup

		Backup-z

		SKMBT_C25314061615570



		1



		2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Approval of a request from the Edgewood Subdivision Home Owners' Association who is seeking authorization for the use of motorized 


cart travel on all streets within the subdivision in accordance with Article III Motorized Carts of the Fayette County Code.


The Board of Commissioners approval is required to designate streets for motorized cart travel, per Article III Motorized Carts of the 


Fayette County Code of Ordinances.   


 


These are internal streets that are not subject to the same evaluation as external streets that exist outside subdivisions. 


 


From between 1995 to 2013, Fayette County has approved twenty-four subdivisions for motorized cart use on internal streets.  The 


streets in the Edgewood Subdivision include Edgewood Parkway, Sidney Lane, Woodward Drive, and Keystone Court, and all the streets 


have a posted speed limit of 25 miles per hour. 


 


If the streets are approved, staff will update the list of streets authorized for motorized cart use and will forward a copy to Brian Eubanks 


of the Fayette County Sheriff's Office for enforcement.  The updated list will also be provided to Public Works Director Phil Mallon for the 


posting of proper signage.


Approval of a request from the Edgewood Subdivision Home Owners' Association who is seeking authorization for the use of motorized 


cart travel on all streets within the subdivision in accordance with Article III Motorized Carts of the Fayette County Code.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 26, 2014 Consent



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #11
















































COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of a request to adopt Ordinance 2014-10 amending the County Code, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as amended, 


specifically, Article V. Conditional Uses, Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, and Commercial Development 


Standards, Sec. 110-173, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, 3. General State Route Overlay Zone regarding SR74 South.


On November 14, 2013, staff came to the Board about a proposal from Ms. Linda Sandwich to rezone a lot containing an existing single 


family residence to Office-Institutional for conversion into a medical office on State Route 74 South.  The Board sent this request to the 


Planning Commission to review for a possible decision on the Future Land Use Plan that would allow office use in the area. 


 


On May 8, 2014, staff returned to the Board with recommendations from the Planning Commission.  The Board instructed staff to proceed 


with public hearings on the matter.   


 


The Planning Commission has unanimously recommended approval of the amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances.


Approval of staff's request to adopt Ordinance 2014-10 amending the County Code, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as amended, 


specifically, Article V. Conditional Uses, Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, and Commercial Development 


Standards, Sec. 110-173, Transportation Corridor overlay Zone, 3. General State Route Overlay Zone regarding State Route 74 South.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, May 8, 2014


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 26, 2014 Public Hearing



FJones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #6







 


 


1


STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2014 - 10 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


CHAPTER 110. ZONING ORDINANCE, AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE V 


CONDITIONAL USES, NONCONFORMANCES, TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR 


OVERLAY ZONE, AND COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, SEC. 110-173.  


TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR OVERLAY ZONE, 3. GENERAL STATE ROUTE 


OVERLAY ZONE REGARDING SR 74 SOUTH; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO 


REPEAL CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN 


EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


  


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the 


regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall 


be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


 


Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as amended, 


is hereby further amended by adding in its entirety the following to Article V. Conditional Uses, 


Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, and Commercial Development 


Standards, Sec. 110-173.  Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, 3. General State Route Overlay 


Zone: 


 


10. SR 74 South Corridor Sidewalk Requirements. In order to provide for the 


connection of the sidewalk system installed by GDOT when SR 74 South was widened 


from two lanes to four lanes, sidewalks are required as an integral component of 


nonresidential development in this area as identified in the SR 74 South Overlay District 


in the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element. Said sidewalks shall 


connect to the existing sidewalks.  In the cases where a required sidewalk is to be located 


on abutting parcels, an alignment shall be established and the sidewalk shall be developed 


so as to provide for connection at the property line. 


 
Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 


incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


Section 3.  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 







 


 


2


Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to 


the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 


this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 


reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 


judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of 


Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 


remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 


greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections 


of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


 


Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 So ordained this 26th day of June, 2014, by the  


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


      ____________________________ 


      STEVE BROWN, CHAIRMAN 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


_________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 


 


 


 













		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2014-10 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2014-10 Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2014-10 Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Resolution 2014-13 Backup












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Petition No. T-018-14, Skyway Towers, Owner, and PM&A, Agent, request for a reduction of the requirements of 


Section 110-150. Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers, in order to develop a 185-foot Monopole Telecommunication 


Tower, and to reduce the 1,000-foot setback from an adjacent municipality to 114 feet.


Skyway Towers and PM&A came before the Fayette County Planning Commission on June 5, 2014 requesting authorization to reduce 


the 1,000-foot setback from an adjacent municipality (Fayetteville) to 114-feet in order to erect a Monopole Telecommunication Tower.   


 


The specific area under consideration is located at 112 New Hope Road near State Route 85 North, Land Lot 167 of the 5th District.   


 


The Planning Commission approved this request 4-1 with Doug Powell voting in opposition.  


 


A tower application was approved for the site in 2011, but the tower was never built and the application expired.  In the meanwhile, the 


ordinance has changed and a 1,000-foot setback from a municipality is required.  All other requirements have been met, but the owner 


and applicant are unable to meet the 1,000-foot setback.


Approval of Petition No. T-018-14, Skyway Towers, Owner, and PM&A, Agent, request for a reduction of the requirements of Section 


110-150. Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers, in order to develop a 185-foot Monopole Telecommunication Tower, 


and to reduce the 1,000-foot setback from an adjacent municipality to 114 feet.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 26, 2014 Public Hearing



FJones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #4













































































































































































































































		Planning and Zoning- Petition T-018-14 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Petition T-018-14 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of staff's request to adopt Resolution 2014-13 amending the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element Text, 


and amending the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan Map.


On November 14, 2013, staff came to the Board about a proposal from Ms. Linda Sandwich to rezone a lot containing an existing single 


family residence to Office-Institutional for conversion into a medical office on State Route 74 South.  The Board sent this request to the 


Planning Commission to review for a possible decision on the Future Land Use Plan that would allow office use in the area. 


 


On May 8, 2014, staff returned to the Board with recommendations from the Planning Commission.  The Board instructed staff to proceed 


with public hearings on the matter.   


 


The Planning Commission has unanimously recommended approval of the amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances. 


 


Resolution 2014-13 will amend the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element Text concerning the new State Route 74 


South Overlay District and the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan Map to designate areas as Office in the State Route 74 South 


Overlay District.


Approval of staff's request to adopt Resolution 2014-13 amending the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element Text, and 


amending the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan Map.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, May 8, 2014


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 26, 2014 Public Hearing



FJones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #5

















		Planning and Zoning- Resolution 2014-13 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Resolution 2014-13 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Purchasing Ted Burgess


Approval of staff's recommendation to purchase a policy for property and casualty insurance from OneBeacon, for Fiscal Year 2015, 


through Public Risk Underwriters, for an amount of $626,704.00, and for the Chairman to sign the policy and related documents.


The county purchases property and casualty insurance each year, with the policy coinciding with the fiscal year.  Property and casualty 


insurance consists of a number of categories of coverage, including general liability, public officials errors and omissions, law 


enforcement liability, employment practices and employee benefits liability, automobile liability and physical damage, property, crime, and 


inland marine.  It also includes coverage for the portion of terrorism coverage that is mandated by state law (property fire coverage). 


 


The county's broker of record - Public Risk Underwriters - acquired proposals from three insurance carriers for Fiscal Year 2015.  The 


three insurance carriers are: OneBeacon, Travelers, and Selective Insurance Company.  After comparing premium amounts, limits of 


liability, and deductible amounts, and discussions with the broker of record, staff recommends acceptance of the offer from OneBeacon 


as providing the best combination of price and coverage.


Approval of staff's recommendation to purchase a policy for property and casualty insurance from OneBeacon, for Fiscal Year 2015, 


through Public Risk Underwriters, for an amount of $626,704.00, and for the Chairman to sign the policy and related documents.


Funds are included in the Fiscal Year 2015 budget.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Since Fayette County had two large claims within the past three-year cycle, soliciting providers was not feasible.


ConsentThursday, June 26, 2014



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #9







 
To: 
 
From: 
 
Date: 
 
Subject
 
The cou
to the u
differen
over tim
each ye
change
carriers
 
As is co
analyze
would p
Underw
 
PRU ac
Selectiv
similarit
evaluat
 
Based o
Record
insuran
 
The Fis
(which 
 


 
 
Attachm


 Stev


 Ted 


 June


t: Prop


unty enters i
unique nature
nt than other 
me.  In past y
ear, which w
e to soliciting
s (Attachmen


ommon prac
e and compa
provide the b
writers (PRU


cquired cove
ve.  In determ
ties and diffe
ted (Attachm


on findings f
’s recomme


nce coverage


scal Year 20
is scheduled


10010090 5
10030090 5
27030550 5
50541010 5
     Total 


ments (2) 


ve Rapson 


L. Burgess 


e 16, 2014 


perty & Casu


into an agree
e of the insu


r purchases. 
years, Requ


was not suffic
g offers throu
nt 1). 


ctice, the cou
are the carrie
best value.  T
). 


erage offers 
mining which
erences.  Pr


ment 2). 


from the ana
ndation to a
e for Fiscal Y


15 premium
d on the age


523180Gene
523180/5231
523180 Fire 
523180 Wate


  


ualty Insuran


ement for pr
urance indus


 Different ap
ests for Prop
cient to assu
ugh insuranc


unty appoint
ers’ offerings
The Broker o


from three in
h offer would
remium price


alysis, evalua
ccept the off


Year 2015. 


 price is $62
enda to be co


eral Gov’t No
181 Public S
Services
er Administra


nce for FY 20


roperty and c
stry, the proc
pproaches h
posals broug


ure the best 
ce brokers re


ed a Broker 
s, and meet 
of Record fo


nsurance ca
d be the bes
es, limits of c


ations and d
ffer from One


26,704.  Fun
onsidered be


on-Departme
Safety Non-D


 
ation 


 


015 


casualty ins
curement pro
have been p
ght response
policy for the
esulted in of


of Record to
with county


or the curren


arriers: OneB
st value for t
coverage, an


discussions, 
eBeacon for


nds are inclu
efore this ite


ental 
Departmenta


urance each
ocess for ins
ut to the tes
es from one
e best price.
ffers from mo


o solicit insu
y staff to con
nt fiscal year 


Beacon, Tra
he county, s
nd deductibl


I support th
r property an


uded in the p
em) as follow


 $15
al   31


     6
     8
 $62


h fiscal year
surance poli


st and evalua
e or two carri
.  A procedu
ore insuranc


urance carrie
sider the on


r is Public Ri


velers, and 
staff compar
e amounts w


e Broker of 
nd casualty 


proposed bud
ws: 


52,590 
7,136 


69,768 
87,210 


6,704 


 


.  Due 
cies is 


ated 
iers 


ural 
ce 


ers, 
e that 
sk 


ed 
were 


dget 







Attachment 1


FY FY FY FY FY FY Proposed
Fiscal Year 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Direct contacts 18 No RFP 11 15 NA(2) 3 (5) NA(2)


Total proposals received 2 NA 3 2 NA NA NA
Responsive proposals received 2 NA 2 1 NA NA NA
Responsive proposals:


Agent or Broker PRU PRU(1) PRU PRU PRU PRU PRU
Insurance Carrier Travelers Travelers(1) Travelers Travelers Travelers OneBeacon OneBeacon
Proposed Price 399,565                 415,660    420,578     425,651 482,800     599,568 626,704        
Agent or Broker Matrix Ins.


Agency
NA BB&T Ins.


Services
NA NA ACCG PRU


Insurance Carrier Trident NA OneBeacon NA NA ACCG Travelers
Proposed Price 380,265                 NA 637,781     NA NA 743,926        


Opt 1 :639,724
Opt 2: 559,345


Agent or Broker NA NA NA NA PRU IOA PRU
Insurance Carrier NA NA NA NA AAIC(3) Trident Selective
Proposed Price NA NA NA NA 568,225     NA (4) 756,477        
Agent or Broker NA NA NA NA PRU NA PRU
Insurance Carrier NA NA NA NA OneBeacon NA Scottsdale
Proposed Price NA NA NA NA 625,569     NA Declined(6)


(1)An RFP was not issued for FY 2010 because Travelers agreed to charge the same rates
as in FY 2009.  The increase was due to added insurance for rented communications towers,
additional vehicles, and adjustments to various equipment inventories.


(2)A broker (Public Risk Underwriters) was chosen to procure competitive prices, then recommend the best combination
of price and coverage.


(3) American Alternative Insurance Corporation


(4) IOA offer was incomplete as of the due date.


(5) Brokers who expressed an interest were allowed to submit offers.  No broker was made Broker of Record, & no RFP issued.
(6) Scottsdale declined the account due to losses (vehicle).


Fayette County, Georgia
Property & Casualty Insurance


P:\Ted B\Insurance\2015\RFP History REV 6-16-14







Fayette County BOC
 OneBeacon Coverage Summary


2014 - 2015


Selective Travelers OneBeacon Selective Travelers OneBeacon Selective Travelers OneBeacon
COVERAGE PREMIUM PREMIUM PREMIUM Limits LIMITS LIMITS DEDUCTIBLE DEDUCTIBLE DEDUCTIBLE


GENERAL LIABILITY $120,000 $109,395 $86,309 $2,000,000/$2,000,000 $2,000,000/$2,000,000 $2,000,000/$2,000,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000
Products/Completed Operations Included Included Included $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $0 $0 $0
Personal & Advertising Injury Included Included Included $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000
Damage to Premises Rented to You Included Included Included $100,000 $100,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0
Failure To Supply Included Excluded Included $500,000 Excluded $500,000 - - $0
Health Care & Social Services Included Included Included Included Included $2,000,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000
Sexual Abuse Included Included Included $1,000,000 $1,000,000/$2,000,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0


PUBLIC OFFICIALS ERRORS & OMISSIONS $135,000 $10,142 $247,141 $1,000,000/$3,000,000 $2,000,000/$2,000,000 $2,000,000/$2,000,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000
Retro Date: 07/01/1995 Included Included Included


EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY Included $40,143 Included Included in POL Limit $2,000,000/$2,000,000 $2,000,000/$2,000,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000
Retro Date: 07/01/1995 Included Included Included


LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY Included $95,554 Included $1,000,000/$1,000,000 $2,000,000/$2,000,000 $2,000,000/$2,000,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITY Included $507 Included $1,000,000/$2,000,000 $1,000,000/$3,000,000 $1,000,000/$3,000,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000
Retro Date: 07/01/1995 Included Included Included


AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY $240,000 $201,809 $115,756 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000
Uninsured/ Underinsured Motorist Included Included Included $75,000 $75,000 $75,000
Hired Auto Included Included Included Included Included Included
Non-Owned Auto Included Included Included Included Included Included
Medical Payments Included Included Included $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
Number of Units with Liability Included Included Included 397 397 397


AUTOMOBILE PHYSICAL DAMAGE Included $20,898 Included
Comprehensive/Collision Included Included Included Actual Cash Value Actual Cash Value Actual Cash Value $25,000/$25,000 $25,000/$25,000 $25,000/$25,000


PROPERTY $180,000 $177,100 $160,311
Blanket Building Included Included Included $171,752,163 $171,752,163 $142,113,772 $10,000 $25,000 $10,000
Blanket Personal Property Included Included Included Included Included $17,112,313 $10,000 $25,000 $10,000
Scheduled Buildings  & Property Included Included Included Included Included $1,876,000 $10,000 $25,000 $10,000
Scheduled Buildings  & Property Included Included Included Included Included $2,326,572 $10,000 $25,000 $10,000
Scheduled Buildings  & Property Included Included Included Included Included $3,016,484 $10,000 $25,000 $10,000
Lights & Fence Included Included Included Included Included $2,610,209 $10,000 $25,000 $10,000
Business Income Included Included Included $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $10,000 72 Hours 72 Hours
Computer Equipment Included Included Included $3,863,836 $3,863,836 $3,863,836 $10,000 $25,000 $10,000
Valuable Papers Included Included Included $3,650,000 $3,650,000 $3,650,000 $10,000 $25,000 $10,000


FLOOD COVERAGE Included Included Included $5,000,000/$5,000,000 $5,000,000/$5,000,000 $5,000,000/$5,000,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000
EARTHQUAKE COVERAGE Included Included Included $5,000,000$5,000,000 $5,000,000/$5,000,000 $5,000,000/$5,000,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000EARTHQUAKE COVERAGE Included Included Included $5,000,000$5,000,000 $5,000,000/$5,000,000 $5,000,000/$5,000,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000


EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN
Expediting Expenses Included Included Included $100,000 $250,000 $250,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Hazardous Substances Included Included Included $100,000 $250,000 $250,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Perishable Goods Included Included Included $100,000 $250,000 $250,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
CFC Refrigerants Included Included Included $100,000 $250,000 $250,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000


CRIME
Employee Theft Included Included Included $775,000 $775,000 $775,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Money & Securities Included Included Included $100,000/$100,000 $100,000/$100,000 $100,000/$100,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000
Forgery and Alteration Included Included Included $25,000 $25,000 $100,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000
Computer Fruad Included Included Included $775,000 $775,000 $775,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Money Orders & Counterfeit Paper Currency Included Included Included $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $10,000 $10,000 $1,000
ERISA Employee Theft Included Included Included Included Included $25,000 - - $0


INLAND MARINE $55,000 $52,800 $12,941
Data Breach Excluded Excluded Included Excluded Exluded $25,000 - - $1,000
Miscellaneous Sched/Unsched Equipment Inlcuded Included Included $1,385,115 $1,385,115 $1,385,115 $10,000 $25,000 $10,000
Leased/Rented Equipment Inlcuded Included Included $476,000 $476,000 $476,000 $10,000 $25,000 $10,000
Scheduled Contractors Equipment Inlcuded Included Included $4,649,982 $4,649,982 $4,649,982 $10,000 $25,000 $10,000


EXCESS LIABILITY $26,477 $35,578 $3,000 $1,000,000/$3,000,000 $3,000,000/$3,000,000 $3,000,000/$3,000,000 $0 $10,000 $0


TERRORISM COVERAGE Included Included $1,246
TOTAL PREMIUM $756,477 $743,926 $626,704


Additional POLICIES PREMIUM NOTES


Sheriff's Office AD&D Policy - 3 year term $2,035
3rd Term 
Premium


Commissioners' Travelers Accident Policy - 3 year term $750
3rd Term 
Premium


IMPORTANT: This summary sheet is for informational purposes only and does not supersede the proposal or policy.  


ATTACHMENT 2





		Purchasing- Property & Casual...rance Agenda Request File

		Purchasing- Property & Casualty Insurance Backup

		Purchasing- Property & Casualty Ins - Backup 1

		Purchasing- Property & Casualty Ins - Backup 2

		Purchasing- Property & Casualty Ins - Backup 3












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


June 12, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on June 12, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the June 12, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow gave a brief PowerPoint presentation in recognition of fathers for Father’s Day, and he offered
the Invocation.  A copy of the PowerPoint presentation, identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


Commissioner Oddo led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda as written.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PRESENTATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Ms. Katie Wilson, of Starr’s Mill High School, who has been named Girls Athlete of
the Year by the Fayette Daily News. 


Mr. Christopher Dunn of the Fayette Daily News and the Board of Commissioners recognized Ms. Katie
Wilson of Starr’s Mill High School for being named Girls Athlete of the Year. It was mentioned that Mr.
Andrew Johnson was named the Boys Athlete of the Year, but that he was unable to attend the meeting.   A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #14







Minutes
June 12, 2014
Page Number 2


PUBLIC HEARING:


2. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to transfer an existing 2014 Retail Alcohol, Beer and Wine
License (License #13-000299) from Gregory Scott St. John to Karim Dodhia of Marvel Group, LLC,
doing business as DJ’s One Stop Shop, which is located at 1850 South Highway 85, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs spoke briefly to the Board about this request, and she informed the
Board that this request to transfer the license had met all requirements.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve staff’s recommendation to transfer an existing 2014 Retail Alcohol,
Beer and Wine License (License #13-000299) from Gregory Scott St. John to Karim Dodhia of Marvel
Group, LLC, doing business as DJ’s One Stop Shop, which is located at 1850 South Highway 85,
Fayetteville, Georgia.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


3. Public Hearing on the County’s proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 2015 which begins July 1,
2014 and ends June 30, 2015.


County Administrator Steve Rapson gave a fifteen minute PowerPoint presentation on the County’s
proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 2015 which begins July 1, 2014 and ends June 30, 2015.  Mr.
Rapson also answered a few questions from the Board on this matter.


Mr. Rapson also informed the Board that both he and Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott had been
diligently working with Standard and Poor’s since they have a “Rate and Reevaluation” where the agency
looks at the current bonds and reevaluates the County’s bond rating.  He said Mrs. Parrott and her Finance
staff have jumped through many hoops and that earlier today the County was notified that Standard and
Poor’s was going to raise the County’s rating from AA+ to AAA.   He mentioned that this raise meant that
Fayette County would be one of only four counties in the State of Georgia with AAA rating, and that it is the
crown jewel of bond rating.  The Board congratulated Mr. Rapson, Mrs. Parrott, and the county’s staff for
this good news.  Mr. Rapson credited staff, Constitutional Officers, the Finance Department, the county’s
long-term strategy, and the Board of Commissioners for working together in reaching the goal.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to the proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 2015.


The Board took no action on this matter since this was the first of two required public hearings for the
budget.  The second public hearing will be held on June 26, 2014.  Copies of the request, PowerPoint
presentation, and the Press Release on the AAA Bond Rating, identified as “Attachment 4,” follow these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Brown moved to table Consent Agenda #8 until the June 26, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting. 
Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.







Minutes
June 12, 2014
Page Number 3


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of Consent Agenda Item #8. 
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


4. Approval of a request to provide a $5,000.00 local salary supplement for the Sheriff consistent with
local salary supplements provided to other Constitutional Officers.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 5,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of staff’s request to appoint Assistant Fire Chief Kevin Baggett as the representative from
Peachtree City’s Fire and Emergency Services to the West Georgia Region IV Emergency Medical
Services Council for a two-year term that will begin on July 1, 2014 and will expire on June 30, 2016. 
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6,” follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award annual Bid #904 as a split bid to Martin Marietta
Aggregates for the purchase of surge stone and rip rap types 1 & 3, and to Hanson’s Aggregates for
the purchase of GAB #4, #5, #57, #89 and #810 stone, and to Stephens Road & Dirt for the purchase
of #34, #357 and M-10 screenings, for Fiscal Year 2015, in an amount not to exceed $250,672.00.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7,” follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


7. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to allow the exchange of meters between Mr.
Newhart’s old property at 600 Janice Drive and the current property he owns at 115 Gingercake
Drive at no cost to Mr. Newhart.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8,” follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Mr. Frank Gardner commented on Consent Agenda Item #7.  He stated that the background did not provide
information and he asked if he would be eligible for an exchange of meters if he changed addresses.  He
summarized saying that it looked like the County was “opening up a bag of worms.”  Chairman Brown
replied that there was a special exception since Mr. Newhart’s property was condemned for one of the
County’s road projects.  He said Mr. Newhart did not take the condemnation to court and was willing to
work with the county through the condemnation of his property, and as part of that the County was looking
at moving the water meter from the old site to the new site.  The Chairman concluded that was the
exception in this matter.


8. Approval of Chairman Steve Brown’s recommendation to amend Ordinance 2014-02 by revising
White Lining standards to those reflected in Georgia Senate Bill 117 to include reducing the
“Tolerance Zone” from 24 inches to 18 inches and other minor modifications.


This item was tabled to the June 26, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 9,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


9. Approval of the May 22, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes and the June 4, 2014 Board
of Commissioners Special Called Budget Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


There were no Old Business items for consideration.







Minutes
June 12, 2014
Page Number 4


NEW BUSINESS:


10. Consideration of the Water System’s recommendation to approve the Professional Services Task
Order (Task 1) from CH2M Hill, in the amount of $370,000.00, for design services of capital
improvements at the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant.


County Administrator Steve Rapson said this proposal was for the design of the vast majority of the
improvements associated with optimization of the Crosstown and South Fayette Water Plants.  He stated
that the lion’s share of the $5.6 million Water System’s budget was purposed for these projects.  Mr.
Rapson informed the Board that it will take a while before all the projects come online.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the Water System’s recommendation to approve the Professional
Services Task Order (Task 1) from CH2M Hill, in the amount of $370,000.00, for design services of capital
improvements at the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
10,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Frank Gardner: Mr. Frank Gardner spoke about Lake Peachtree.  He said the current administration is blaming the
previous administration for the problems surrounding the lake.  He said he called to get information on this matter
and learned that in January 31% of the County’s usage came from Lake Peachtree and in February the County’s
usage of Lake Peachtree dropped to 8%.  He stated that since March, the County has not used Lake Peachtree.  He
thought this issue needed to be looked at closer and that a vote should be held in the county to amend the contract
Fayette County has pertaining to Lake Peachtree.  He suggested that the County should not dredge Lake Peachtree
in order to provide Peachtree City residents with a nice fishing place that he, as a county resident, cannot use.  He
did not think it was right for the County to spend money for the city to have a good fishing hole, and he insisted that
the County needed to revisit the contract.  He reminded the Board that about a year ago he asked the Board to
consider installing a dock at Lake Horton and Lake McIntosh so disabled people could get in and out of a boat.  He
thought it was a shame that there was so much talk about spending money for the people of Peachtree City to have
a place to fish when he does not have a place to fish.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


McIntosh Trail Community Service Board: County Administrator Steve Rapson and County Clerk Floyd Jones
spoke to the Board about changes to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board.  They informed the Board that
state law gives three members to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board: two of whom need to be citizen
appointees and one of whom is an elected official.  The Board was informed that currently there are three members
of whom one had suddenly resigned and another’s term was expiring soon.  The Board of Commissioners
established a Selection Committee consisting of Chairman Brown and Commissioner McCarty to review applications
for the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board for the position whose term is soon to expire.  The Board also
appointed Commissioner David Barlow to serve on the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board; filling the
immediate vacancy created by the resignation.


Lisbon Baptist Church: County Administrator Steve Rapson reminded the Board that part of the County’s
responsibility is for indigent burial.  He informed the Board that Lisbon Baptist Church recently voted to donate eight
indigent burial plots to Fayette County.







Minutes
June 12, 2014
Page Number 5


Report on Lake Peachtree: County Administrator Steve Rapson said the County was in the process of expediting
the dredging for Lake Peachtree.  He said he would send notification to the Peachtree City Council as well as to the
Board later in the evening.  He said the County had to submit for a new permit, and that he approved the Change
Order earlier in the day to expedite the process.  He said the County had already received approval through Permit
404 for wet dredging, but now that the lake cannot be refilled the County has to get another permit for dry dredging. 
He informed the Board that he was unsure how long the process would take to get a permit for dry dredging.  Next,
Mr. Rapson stated that he sent out a detailed time analysis with regards to the spillway and refilling of Lake
Peachtree.  He said the time lines were detailed and were still in effect.  Mr. Rapson then spoke about a letter
received from the Peachtree City Council in regards to things the city wanted the county to do in regards to Lake
Peachtree and its dredging.  He said the attorney had drafted a letter in response to the city’s letter, and he asked
the Board to review the drafted letter before it was sent to the city.  


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Threatened Litigation: County Attorney Dennis Davenport informed the Board that he had one item of threatened
litigation to discuss with the Board in Executive Session. 


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow thanked the Finance Department for their hard work in preparing for
the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget and for its efforts in moving Fayette County to AAA Bond Rating.  He spoke about how
he came to Board meetings for two years prior to becoming an elected official, and as a videographer who filmed the
meetings and uploaded them to YouTube; he was able to watch the interaction between the former administration
and Mrs. Parrott.  He said if they looked to Mrs. Parrott and she was nodding her head they would vote “yes,” but if
she were indicating disagreement, they would vote “no.”  He said he learned quickly who was running the County
and who was running the finances of the County.  He said Mrs. Parrott and her staff were precious and were doing a
good job.  He acknowledged that County Administrator Steve Rapson gets a lot of credit because he was able to
unleash Mrs. Parrott.  Commissioner Barlow mentioned that Mr. David Studdard is the prime candidate to replace
Ronnie Chance as the next State Senator and that he was supporting Mr. Studdard for the position.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo congratulated the County for obtaining the AAA Bond Rating.  He said
his dad use to tell a story about his grandmother; an immigrant from Italy, who would look at an excellent report card
and quip “Is that the best you can do?”  He said obtaining the AAA Bond Rating reflected the good work and
cooperation everyone had in the county.  Commissioner Oddo spoke about his brother recently becoming a father,
and he spoke about the example his own father set before he wished his dad and all fathers a “Happy Father’s Day.”


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty thanked everyone for coming, asked the people to communicate
with the Board on their issues.  He stated that there are two documents in the country that makes it what it is.  He
said the first document that was used to found the nation was the Holy Bible.  He said the second document that is
still being used by the nation is the United States Constitution, and he offered two copies of the United States
Constitution to fathers in the audience.  He also wished all fathers a Happy Father’s Day.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio wished everyone a Happy Father’s Day and asked them to stay safe.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown congratulated staff on obtaining the AAA Bond Rating.  He pointed out that
obtaining the AAA Bond Rating was done in a way that the County can give incentive pay increases to employees,
by taking care of critical needs, by fixing the historical structure across the street, and that these items were not cut







Minutes
June 12, 2014
Page Number 6


out of the budget.  He said it was done in a way that was professional and appropriate, and that the budget was not
hacked away with a meat-cleaver in order to put money in some fund somewhere.  He said the County obtained the
AAA Bond Rating while rewarding the employees for a great effort.  He said the county hit its marks, and there are
rewards for hitting marks.  He said it was done in a way that everyone could be very proud.  He added that the
County has a great line-up for interns including seven high school interns.  He stated that Ms. Kyra Parks would be
one of the interns.  He said she was an intern last year and will be the lead intern this year.  He said she would be
put in a leadership position, that great projects are set up for them, and that they will give presentations to the Board
for a vote.  He said there were some college interns coming to the county, and that there would be a youthful,
energetic summer with all the incoming interns.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Threatened Litigation: Chairman Brown moved to recess into Executive Session for one item of Threatened
Litigation.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 7:50 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 8:05 p.m.


Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to return to Official Session and for the Chairman to sign
the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 11,” follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner McCarty moved to adjourn the June 12, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioners
Ognio and Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The June 12, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 8:05 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 26th day of June 2014.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Sheriff's Office Sheriff Barry H. Babb


Approval of the Sheriff's decision to dispose of county property and for any monies received for the value of the property to be returned to 


the Federal Seizures Funds.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office will be disposing of / selling one 2009 Chevrolet Tahoe and one 2009 Ford Explorer, both of which 


were totalled in sperate motor vehicle accidents. 


 


Any claims and insurance were paid out on these incidents several years ago. 


 


Both vehicles were originally purchased with Federal Seizures Funds, and any monies received for the value of the vehicles must be 


returned to that fund.


Approval of the Sheriff's decision to dispose of county property and for any monies received for the value of the property to be returned to 


the Federal Seizures Funds.


Not applicable.  All funds received for the disposal of property will be returned to the Federal Seizures Fund.


No


No No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 26, 2014 Consent



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #13












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Water System Lee Pope


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2014-15 implementing the Leak Protection Program.


The proposed new policy allows, in any twelve (12) month period, a credit for a repaired leak up to $1,000, provided the customer is 


paying the monthly leak protection fee of $3.00.  This proposed policy allows for one bill to be credited to an average bill using the 


previous six months to calculate the average.  Should the customer opt out of the Leak Protection Program (LLP), no credit for any leak 


would be considered.  No credit shall be given in any twelve (12) month period above $1,000.00. 


 


Example:  As a result on the customer's side of the meter, if this resulted in a water bill of $700.00 and the average customer bill for the 


preceding six (6) months had been $50,00, then crediting the maximum leak insurance allowed of $1,000.00, the customer's bill would be 


reduced to $50.00.  If the customer had another leak within the 12 months, they would still have $350.00 available for water credits. 


 


The support documents include two draft resolutions to implement the Leak Protection Program.  Draft A (pgs 2-6) is the originally 


submitted resolution provided by County Attorney Dennis Davenport for approval.  Draft B (pgs 7-12) includes changes to the original 


resolution as suggested by Commissioner Charles Oddo. 


 


A final form resolution will be produced based on the vote and changes adopted by the Board in adopting the Leak Protection Program.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2014-15 implementing the Leak Protection Program.


This current program requires funding; the new program will stand along and will not take funding from the current operating budget.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


An approved Leak Protection Program will replace the existing Plumbers Leak Adjustments and Water Adjustment Fund.  Implementation 


the Leak Protection Program and its associated costs, as described, is included as part of the proposed Fiscal Year 2015 Water System 


budget.


Thursday, June 26, 2014 New Business



FJones

Typewritten Text

New Business #17







1 


 


A RESOLUTION BY 


FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM 


 


  WHEREAS, the Fayette County Water System (the “System”) has extensively 


reviewed its policy of leak adjustments provided to customers of the System; and 


  WHEREAS, it is apparent that a number of customers are unaware of the policy, 


and there have been numerous occasions where it has proven difficult to administer the present 


policy due to the varying types of leaks, water problems, and/or related issues that have caused 


the System to implement this new policy so as to more uniformly deal with significant leak 


issues that may occur with certain System customers, as hereinafter defined; and 


  WHEREAS, the System Director desires to create this new policy, and 


implement the needed uniformity for the future operations of the System, its customers, and 


potential conservation of water usage in Fayette County; and 


  WHEREAS, this policy is intended to address the cost of excessive water loss 


causing the water billing amount to exceed a customer’s normal average. 


  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED and adopted by the Board of 


Commissioners and it is hereby so resolved and adopted as follows: 


SECTION 1 


  The previous policy of the System, to adjust customer leaks based on the 


wholesale water rate is rescinded in its entirety.  On and after the effective date of this 


Resolution, this new policy shall govern all issues involving certain customer leaks, and related 


matters, as delineated in this policy. 


 


 


 



FJones

Typewritten Text

Draft A







2 


 


SECTION 2 


Leak Protection Defined:  Applicability. 


  A. “Leak Protection” as used in this policy, and as implemented by the 


System, shall mean a program by which eligible customers will be protected from inordinate and 


unusual charges for water service provided by the System in the event of an undetected leak, 


water pipe failure, or similar unintentional cause which results in an abnormal discharge of water 


from a point commencing at the customer side of a water metering device through all the 


connections with the eligible customer’s dwelling, building, or similar improvement. 


  B. No protection is afforded to any eligible customer who allows a defective 


waterline leak to occur for the amount of water used within a 60-day period.  It shall be 


presumed that in the event the water usage by any eligible customer exceeds two (2) times their 


normal, customary usage within the preceding twelve (12)-month period, and this usage occurs 


for more than 60 consecutive days, that the customer has failed to take adequate and necessary 


precautions to end any leak.  In such an event, the System may deny leak protection coverage 


partially, or in its entirety. 


  C. “Eligible customer” shall mean that this policy applies to any single 


family residential customer and any bona fide religious organization, which holds worship 


services within Fayette County, and the property of the religious institution is registered with the 


County as being exempt from taxation due to the property being used for religious services 


and/or related activities.  NO COVERAGE IS PROVIDED TO ANY SCHOOL, 


COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL, OR MULTI-FAMILY ACCOUNT ON THE SYSTEM. 


 







3 


 


SECTION 3 


Cost of Service Opt-Out 


A. All “eligible customers”, as defined in Section 2, subparagraph C, shall be 


charged the sum of $3.00 per month on and after the effective date of this policy for leak 


protection afforded through this policy. 


B. Notice of this service and protection shall be provided to all eligible 


customers.  Any eligible customer who does not wish to participate in the protective services 


granted through this policy may provide the System with notice in writing of the eligible 


customer’s decision to “opt-out” of the coverage afforded by this policy.  Upon such notice, on 


the next billing cycle for the eligible customer, the leak protection service charge of $3.00 shall 


be removed from the customer’s billing; provided that on and after that date, there shall be no 


leak protection whatsoever for that customer.  Eligible customers will be allowed to opt back 


in at the beginning of each fiscal year. 


SECTION 4 


Coverage Provisions 


A. In order to apply for payment protection coverage, an eligible customer 


shall submit such information, as required by the System on forms provided by the System for 


that purpose.  Proof of repairs or other bona fide evidence must be provided in writing to the 


System for coverage to apply (receipts, invoices, etc.). 


B. The total amount of protection provided shall be $1,000.00 in any twelve 


(12)-month billing period.  The computation of the credit amount shall be based on the average 


water billings for an individual eligible customer for the six (6)-month period immediately 







4 


 


preceding the leak’s protection and repair.  As an example, as a result of a leak on the customer’s 


side of the meter, if this resulted in a water bill of $700.00, and the average eligible customer bill 


for the preceding six (6) months had been $50.00 per month; then crediting the maximum leak 


insurance allowed of $1,000.00, the eligible customer’s bill would be reduced to $50.00.  No 


credit shall be given in any twelve (12)-month period above $1,000.00; nor to anyone who has 


opted out of coverage.  No further adjustments for leak protection shall be made, unless the 


amount of water usage for a single billing cycle exceeds $1,000.00.  In such circumstances, any 


eligible customer may present such evidence as they deem appropriate to the Customer Service 


Supervisor or System Director to determine what adjustment, if any, shall be afforded that 


eligible customer due to the inordinate magnitude of the leak up to $1,000.00. 


C. In the event the eligible customer has had water service for less than six 


(6) months, then an average over the usage time of the eligible customer shall be computed by 


the System to determine the appropriate average amount for credit pursuant to this coverage. 


SECTION 5 


Exceptions from Coverage 


A. In the event the System has reasonable grounds to believe that an eligible 


customer intentionally, or wantonly disregarded evidence of leakage that caused the amount of 


potable water being wasted on the eligible customer’s property to exceed two (2) times their bill 


on an average monthly basis for more than 60 days, then the System Director my deny any claim 


for protection payments.  Any decision by the System Director to deny a claim may be appealed 


by the eligible customer to the Water Committee.  [Up to now, all decisions from the Water 


Committee have been recommendations with the final decision being made by the Board of 







5 


 


Commissioners.  Need direction on how to structure the appeal process.  Does it end with the 


Water Committee, or does it go to the Board of Commissioenrs?] 


B. Eligible customers with large storage facilities, such as swimming pools, 


hot tubs, or water storage tanks shall provide the System with advance written notice of their 


intention to use Fayette County Water to fill, refill, or otherwise store water on the eligible 


customer’s property. 


C. Coverage may be denied if the eligible customer fails to notify the System 


of the eligible customer’s request for leak protection within three (3) consecutive billing cycles 


of the leak. 


SECTION 6 


  All policies and parts of policies in conflict herewith are specifically repealed. 


SECTION 7 


  This policy is effective as of July 1, 2014 for all billing of eligible customers, on 


and after that date. 







1 


 


Dennis, I highlighted the text I changed in yellow, and added my comments in blue. - 


Chuck 


 


 


 


A RESOLUTION BY 


FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM 


 


  WHEREAS, the Fayette County Water System (the “System”) has extensively 


reviewed its policy of leak adjustments provided to customers of the System; and 


  WHEREAS, it is apparent that a number of customers are unaware of the policy, 


and there have been numerous occasions where it has proven difficult to administer the present 


policy due to the varying types of leaks, water problems, and/or related issues that have caused 


the System to implement this new policy so as to more uniformly deal with significant leak 


issues that may occur with certain System customers, as hereinafter defined; and 


  WHEREAS, the System Director desires to create this new policy, and 


implement the needed uniformity for the future operations of the System, its customers, and 


potential conservation of water usage in Fayette County; and 


  WHEREAS, this policy is intended to address the cost of excessive water loss 


causing the water billing amount to exceed a customer’s normal average. 


  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED and adopted by the Board of 


Commissioners and it is hereby so resolved and adopted as follows: 


SECTION 1 


  The previous policy of the System, to adjust customer leaks based on the 


wholesale water rate is rescinded in its entirety.  On and after the effective date of this 


Resolution, this new policy shall govern all issues involving certain customer leaks, and related 


matters, as delineated in this policy. 



FJones

Typewritten Text

Draft B







2 


 


 


 


 


SECTION 2 


Leak Protection Defined:  Applicability. 


  A. “Leak Protection” as used in this policy, and as implemented by the 


System, shall mean a program by which eligible customers will be protected from inordinate and 


unusual charges for water service provided by the System in the event of an undetected leak, 


water pipe failure, or similar unintentional cause which results in an abnormal discharge of water 


from a point commencing at the customer side of a water metering device through all the 


connections with the eligible customer’s dwelling, building, or similar improvement. 


  B. No protection is afforded to any eligible customer who allows a defective 


waterline leak to occur for the amount of water used within a 60-day period.  It shall be 


presumed that in the event the water usage by any eligible customer exceeds two (2) times their 


normal, customary usage within the preceding twelve (12)-month period, and this usage occurs 


for more than 60 consecutive days, that the customer has failed to take adequate and necessary 


precautions to end any leak.  In such an event, the System may deny leak protection coverage 


partially, or in its entirety. 


  C. “Eligible customer” shall mean that this policy applies to any single 


family residential customer and any bona fide religious organization, which holds worship 


services within Fayette County, and the property of the religious institution is registered with the 


County as being exempt from taxation due to the property being used for religious services 







3 


 


and/or related activities.  NO COVERAGE IS PROVIDED TO ANY SCHOOL, 


COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL, OR MULTI-FAMILY ACCOUNT ON THE SYSTEM. 


 


SECTION 3 


Cost of Service Opt-Out 


A. All “eligible customers”, as defined in Section 2, subparagraph C, shall be 


charged the sum of $3.00 per month on and after the effective date of this policy for leak 


protection afforded through this policy. 


B. Notice of this service and protection shall be provided to all eligible 


customers.  Any eligible customer who does not wish to participate in the protective services 


granted through this policy may provide the System with notice in writing of the eligible 


customer’s decision to “opt-out” of the coverage afforded by this policy.  Upon such notice, on 


the next billing cycle for the eligible customer, the leak protection service charge of $3.00 shall 


be removed from the customer’s billing; provided that on and after that date, there shall be no 


leak protection whatsoever for that customer.  Eligible customers will be allowed to opt back 


in at the beginning of each fiscal year. 


SECTION 4 


Coverage Provisions 


A. In order to apply for payment protection coverage, an eligible customer 


shall submit such information, as required by the System on forms provided by the System for 







4 


 


that purpose.  Proof of repairs or other bona fide evidence must be provided in writing to the 


System for coverage to apply (receipts, invoices, etc.). 


B. The total amount of protection provided shall be $1,000.00 in any twelve 


(12)-month billing period.  The computation of the credit amount shall be based on the average 


water billings for an individual eligible customer for the six (6)-month period immediately 


preceding the leak’s protection detection and repair.  As an example, as a result of a leak on the 


customer’s side of the meter, if this resulted in a water bill of $700.00, if a leak on the 


customer’s side of the meter resulted in a water bill of $700 and the average eligible customer 


bill for the preceding six (6) months had been $50.00 per month;, then crediting the maximum 


leak insurance allowed of $1,000.00, the eligible customer’s bill would be reduced then the 


maximum leak insurance allowed would reduce the eligible customer’s bill by $650, to 


$50.00, i.e. the amount of the average monthly bill of the preceding six (6)-month period.   


 


Alternately, if a leak on the customer’s side of the meter resulted in a water bill of $1100 


and the average eligible customer bill for the preceding six (6) months had been $50.00 per 


month, then the maximum leak insurance allowed of $1000 would reduce the eligible 


customer’s bill to $100.00.   


 


No credit shall be given in any twelve (12)-month period above $1,000.00; nor to anyone who 


has opted out of coverage.  No further adjustments for leak protection shall be made, unless the 


amount of water usage for a single billing cycle exceeds $1,000.00.  In such circumstances, any 


eligible customer may present such evidence as they deem appropriate to the Customer Service 







5 


 


Supervisor or System Director to determine what adjustment, if any, shall be afforded that 


eligible customer due to the inordinate magnitude of the leak up to $1,000.00. 


C. In the event the eligible customer has had water service for less than six 


(6) months, then an average over the usage time of the eligible customer shall be computed by 


the System to determine the appropriate average amount for credit pursuant to this coverage. 


SECTION 5 


Exceptions from Coverage 


A. In the event the System has reasonable grounds to believe that an eligible 


customer intentionally, or wantonly disregarded evidence of leakage that caused the amount of 


potable water being wasted on the eligible customer’s property to exceed two (2) times their bill 


on an average monthly basis for more than 60 days, then the System Director my may deny any 


claim for protection payments.  Any decision by the System Director to deny a claim may be 


appealed by the eligible customer to the Water Committee.  [Up to now, all decisions from the 


Water Committee have been recommendations with the final decision being made by the Board 


of Commissioners.  Need direction on how to structure the appeal process.  Does it end with the 


Water Committee, or does it go to the Board of Commissioenrs Commissioners?] 


B. Eligible customers with large storage facilities, such as swimming pools, 


hot tubs, or water storage tanks shall provide the System with advance written notice of their 


intention to use Fayette County Water to fill, refill, or otherwise store water on the eligible 


customer’s property. 







6 


 


C. Coverage may be denied if the eligible customer fails to notify the System 


of the eligible customer’s request for leak protection within three (3) consecutive billing cycles 


of the leak. 


SECTION 6 


  All policies and parts of policies in conflict herewith are specifically repealed. 


SECTION 7 


  This policy is effective as of July 1, 2014 for all billing of eligible customers, on 


and after that date. 





		Water System- Leak Protection Agenda Request File

		Water System- Leak Protection Backup

		Water System- Leak Protection Backup-1

		Water System- Leak Protection Backup-2












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


June 26, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Fayette County Deputy Sheriff Brent Lonkert for winning the
2014 Law Enforcement Officer of the Year Award.


2. Recognition of the Starr’s Mill Economic Challenge Team for its third
consecutive state championship win.


3. Recognition of Financial Analyst Brady Every for being nominated to
receive the Team Player Award.


PUBLIC HEARING:


4. Consideration of Petition No. T-018-14, Skyway Towers, Owner, and
PM&A, Agent, request for a reduction of the requirement of Section 110-
150. Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers, in order to
develop a 185-Monopole Telecommunication Tower, and to reduce the
1,000-foot setback from an adjacent municipality to 114 feet.


5. Consideration of staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2014-13 amending the
Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element Text, and
amending the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan Map.


6. Consideration of a request to adopt Ordinance 2014-10 amending the
County Code, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as amended, specifically,
Article V. Conditional Uses, Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor
Overlay Zone, and Commercial Development Standards, Sec. 110-173,
Transportation Corridor Over Zone, 3. General State Route Overlay Zone
regarding State Route 74 South.


7. Public Hearing on the County’s proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year
2015 which begins July 1, 2014 and ends June 30, 2015, and
consideration of Resolution 2014-14 adopting the Fiscal Year 2015 budget.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
June 26, 2014
Page Number 2


CONSENT AGENDA:


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to renew a contract with Midwest Employers Casualty Company, as
outlined in “Option 2,” for a period of one year, beginning July 1, 2014 and expiring June 30, 2015, in the
amount of $93,116.00, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to purchase a policy for property and casualty insurance from
OneBeacon, for Fiscal Year 2015, through Public Risk Underwriters, for an amount of $626,704.00, and for
the Chairman to sign the policy and related documents.


10. Approval of staff’s recommendation to grant an easement to AT&T in order to install a fiber cable to the
Fayette County Public Library.


11. Approval of a request from the Edgewood Subdivision Home Owners’ Association who is seeking
authorization for the use of motorized cart travel on all streets within the subdivision in accordance with
Article III Motorized Carts of the Fayette County Code.


12. Approval of staff’s recommendation to continue the maintenance agreement between Fayette County and
Motorola for the 800 MHz ASTRO Simulcast System and to authorize the Chairman to sign the renewal
contract, in the amount of $505,606.29, for the term of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015.


13. Approval of the Sheriff’s decision to dispose of county property and for any monies received for the value of
the property to be returned to the Federal Seizures Funds.


14. Approval of the June 12, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of Chairman Steve Brown’s recommendation to amend Ordinance 2014-02 by revising White
Lining standards to those reflected in Georgia Senate Bill 117 to include reducing the “Tolerance Zone”
from 24 inches to 18 inches and other minor modifications.  This item was tabled at the June 12, 2014
Board of Commissioners meeting. 


NEW BUSINESS:


16. Consideration of staff’s request to upgrade the current 911 Telecommunications Systems from VESTA to
VESTA 4.0, for Fiscal Year 2015, in an amount not to exceed $462,531.00.


17. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2014-15 implementing the Leak Protection
Program.


18. Consideration of a recommendation to amend both the Planning Commission’s compensation and the
Zoning Board of Appeal’s compensation to $75.00 per meeting with said amendments becoming effective
January 1, 2015.







Agenda
June 26, 2014
Page Number 3


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Recognition of Fayette County Deputy Sheriff Brent Lonkert for winning the 2014 Law Enforcement Officer of the Year Award.


The American Legion, Fayette County Post 105, nominated Fayette County Deputy Sheriff  Brent Lonkert for the 2014 Law Enforcement 


Officer of the Year Award.  Subsequently, Officer Lonkert was selected as the winner from law enforcement professionals from  across 


the State of Georgia. 


 


Deputy Lonkert will be presented his American Legion Award on Saturday, June 21 and his presentation will include American Legion 


members and his family members.  The American Legion has consulted with Sheriff Barry Babb and there is agreement to "shine some 


light" on Officer Lonkert's accomplishment at a local setting. 


 


Sheriff Babb, members of the Fayette County Sheriff's Office, Commander Dave Niebes of Fayette County Post 105, and members of the 


American Legion will be on hand for Officer Lonkert's recognition. 


 


The American Legion will bring the award to be presented to Deputy Sheriff Brent Lonkert.


Recognition of Fayette County Deputy Sheriff Brent Lonkert for winning the 2014 Law Enforcement Officer of the Year Award.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This is an example of the Board of Commissioners and the Sheriff, along with appreciative Fayette County citizens, coming together to 


recognize one of Fayette County's finest officers.


Thursday, June 26, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition



FJones

Typewritten Text



FJones

Typewritten Text

Presentation/Recognition #1












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of Chairman Steve Brown's recommendation to amend Ordinance 2014-02 by revising White Lining standards to those 


reflected in Georgia Senate Bill 117 to include reducing the "Tolerance Zone" from 24 inches to 18 inches and other minor modifications.  


This item was tabled at the June 12, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.


White Lining is a practice that has been widely used in the United States where the National Transportation Board concluded that pre-


marking is a practice that helps prevent excavation damage.  The procedure involves an excavator using white paint to indicate the route 


or area that is going to be excavated, such that the locator knows exactly how much marking is required and when.  While lining reduces 


confusion about what utilities need to be marked or not marked.  On January 23, 2014, the Board of Commissioners adopted Ordinance 


2014-12, amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 19, by adding White Lining.  Ordinance 2014-02 (Section A, pgs. 


2-178) established a White Lining "Tolerance Zone" of 24 inches. 


 


Recently, the Georgia General Assembly passed Senate Bill 117 (Section B, pgs 18-36) related to blasting or excavating near utility 


facilities and it will become effective throughout the state on July 1, 2014.  Senate Bill 17 redefined the "Tolerance Zone" related to White 


Lining from 24 inches to 18 inches. 


 


Section C (pgs. 37-39) provides the proposed changes to the White Lining Ordinance.


Approval of Chairman Steve Brown's recommendation to amend Ordinance 2014-02 by revising White Lining standards to those reflected 


in Georgia Senate Bill 117 to include reducing the "Tolerance Zone" from 24 inches to 18 inches and other minor modifications.  This item 


was tabled at the June 12, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, June 12, 2014


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 26, 2014 Old Business



FJones

Typewritten Text



FJones

Typewritten Text

Old Business #15







COUNTY OF FAYETTE


STATE OF GEORGIA


ORDINANCE


NO. 2014-02


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO PRO VIDE FOR UNDERGROUN D MARKING


STANDARDS; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE;


AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE


COUNTY, AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY


THERE OF, THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY BE


AMENDED BY PROVIDING FOR UNDERGROUND MARKING STANDARDS AS


FOLLOWS:


Section 1.


Section 2.


Sec. 19-71.


By deleting Article IV of Chapter 19 in its entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof


a new Article IV in Chapter 19 to read as follows:


ARTICLE IV.


FAYETTE CO UNTY UNDERGROUND MARKING STANDARDS


By adding a section to Article IV pertaining to definitions to be numbered and to


read as follows:


Definitions


1



FJones

Typewritten Text

Section A







The following words are to be understood consistent with the definit ions contained herein


as applicable to this Article.


(a) "Emergency" means a sudden or unforeseen occurrence involving a clear and


imminent danger to life, health, or property; the interruption of utility servic es; or repairs to


transportation facilities that require immediate action.


(b) "Extraordinary circumstances" means circumstances other than normal operating


conditions which exist and make it impractical or impossible for a facility owner or operator to


comply with the provisions of this Article. Such extraordinary circumstances may include, but


shall not be limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, floods, ice and snow, and acts of God.


Section 3. By adding a sect ion to Article IV pertaining to White Lining to be numbered and


to read as follows:


Sec. 19-72. White Lining


(a) Background . White lining is a practice that has been widely used in the United


States where the Nationa l Transportation Board concluded that pre-marking is a practice that


helps prevent excavation damage. The procedure simply involves an excavato r using white paint
"


to indicate the route or area that is going to be excavated, such that the locator then knows


exactly how much marking is required and where. White lining reduces confusion about what


utilities need to be marked or not marked.


(b) Purpose. The purpose of white lining is to allow everyone involved with the


dig site to know the exact location of the proposed excava tion. White lining the excavation site


is an excellent way to assist the utilities or utility locators in marking lines in the work area right


2







the first time and in less time. This technique eliminates speculation by the locator about where


the excavation will take place and will often enable the utility or its agent to locate faster and


more accurately. In short, pre-marking the area and the extent of the intended excavation can


reduce delays and the time it takes to perform the locate.


(c) Examples; timing. Examples of areas to be white lined are smaller (involving


only a portion of a particular address) or linear excavations such as telecommunication drops and


lines, service lines (such as for water, gas, electricity and sewer), utility pits, cuts and repairs,


curb repairs, bore holes, directional boring pathways, pole and signage placements, etc. Such


examples are merely explanatory of the type of excavation where white lining is appropriate and


are not meant to be exclusive. White lining shall be comp leted prior to contacting GA811 to


obtain a locate request ticket number. Electronic/virtual white lining is not an acceptable or


recognized method.


(d) Exceptions to White Lining. Exceptions are allowed as follows:


(I ) Unless one or more utility facilities are damaged 5 times or more


collectively by a contractor making the locate request within a 90-day contract period,


white lining will not be required for any large project so desig nated in accordance with


GPSC Rule 515-9-4-.13 (a copy of GPSC Rule 515-9-4-.13 currently in effect is attached


as Exhibit "An and by this reference is incorporated herein). A large project ticket holder


whose past prohibits it from being exempt. as stated above, will be subject to no more


than a two day shutdown period and shall be required to white line the remainder of the


project to meet the Large Project Marking Facility Locating Agreement Schedule that the


ticket holder and utility originally agreed upon;


3







(2) Homeowners/occupants involved in excavation or land disturbance that is


confined to a single address or parcel. Homeowners/occupants shall not submit locate


requests for excavation or land disturbance that will be performed by a business, a


contractor, or a utility. Businesses, contractors, and utilities are not exempt from white


lining;


(3) "Emergencies" and "extraordinary circumstances" as such terms are


defined herein, are statutory exceptions to the requirement for obtaining a locate ticket


prior to commencing mechanized excavation and, hence, also exceptions to the


requirement for white lining under this section. However, if a particular emergency


notification is later determined not to have been an emergency or an extraordinary


circumstance, then the excavator's failure to procure a locate ticket before excavating


will be treated as a violation of this section. Also, pre-excavation emergency locate ticket


requests (that is, a request for a locate ticket on an expedited basis sooner than the


prescribed time limit) will not be an exception to white lining as required in this section;


(4) Residential telecommunication service drop lines that can be delineated by


the route of the existing line on the ground for single residential address/parcel requests


only; and


(5) Termite baiting systems.


(e) White Lining Symbols as Directions to Locator. White lining proposed dig


sites that will follow a single path or trench shall be marked using white lines and/or arrows and


shall be located for twenty (20) feet on either side of the white line and for twenty (20) feet


outward beyond the designated "START" and "END" of such linear white line. Therefore, it is


important to identify the starting and ending points.


4







START <:~::J c ) ) ) END


(I) Identification of White Lining Excavator. In order to enable the locating utility


or its locators to quickly identify the requested locate at the job site and expedite the locating


process, such excavator when white lining shall identify himself or itself by labeling the white


line area with the excavator's name or the applicable locate ticket number or both.


Section 4. By adding a section to Article IV pertaining to marking of facilities by or for


utilities to be numbered and to read as follows:


Sec. 19-73. Facility Marking by or for Utiliti es


(a) Utility Markings. Facility owners or their locate contractors shall indicate


utility facilities by placing their UPC alpha code, along with the type material (if known) that the


facility consis ts of, at the beginning and end of locates. Also, arrows should be placed at the


ends of markings to indicate that the underground facility continues. In accomplishing the locate


task, the line locator shall use industry-approved and generally accepted methods of locating.


The tolerance zone shall be 24" measured horizontally from the outer edge of either side of such


marked utility facilities. ' .,


(I) To avoid confusion on long runs, the maries shall be frequent enough to


identify the owner.


(2) The marks shall indicate the approximate center-line of the underground


lines. For example, the middle of the cable, line or pipe shall be at the center of the


dashed marks.


5



FJones

Highlight







(3) Location marks shall be 4 to 12 inches in length and at intervals of 5 to 10


feet.


5 ft. to 10 ft. int ervals


1J
4 inches to 12 inches


(4) The line locator (person marking the lines) shall extend marks outside the


proposed work area by 20 to 30 feet if those facilities extend outside the proposed


excavation area.


oc=J c=J c=J 0
¢=:i FA YIII ~ 0 c:::;;;) c:5::) 0


oc=J c=J c=J0
FA V01 Q


(5) In areas such as flower beds, rock gardens, etc., flags or stakes may be an


alternative to paint. The decision to use flags, paint, or stakes shall be based on the


terrain and job conditions. For instance, flags or stakes in wet areas, offsets in dirt
~..


construction zones that have a high volume of traffic crossing their line loca tion marks.


6







(6) Dead ends, stub-outs, termination points, etc., shall be marked as follows:


FA VII I


(7) Lines that have connections (e.g., T' s or Y' s) or changes in directions


shall be clearly indicated. Marks indicating lines or connections shall clearly show the


intersection and path of the line or connection. Marks that show changes in direction


shall be placed closer together for more clarity and accuracy.


FA YIl I


<G . .• 1 FAYIl I


FA VII I


I F \ vm I


(8) Manholes and valves shall be identified by using a circle and letters if they


are not visible (dir t covering valve boxes or pavement covering manhole cover).


®®
(9) Facilities that cross but do not intersect shall be marked as described to


indicate such installation manner.


FAVIII


7







~
< >FAYOI FAYOI


~
FAYOI


~
(10) Unlocateable sewer laterals shall be marked by placing a green triangle on


the sewer main and, if the location of the tap for such unlocateable sewer lateral is


known, by placing a green "T" or "Y" or other appropri ate symbol at the tap pointing


generally toward the address served by such unlocateable sewer lateral.


<.
(I I)


PCH07


When facilities share the same trench, they shall be heavily identified and


separated enough so that they can be readily identified. This would apply to lines that


share the same color code. For example, cable television and telephone lines:-.


< \ I c\ I >
< >• " \ .


< C A. PO W ER I- :>


8







(12) If the facility to be marked has a diameter greater than 12" , the size of the


facili ty shall be indicated if known. If the size is not known, then the mark shall indicate


greater than 12 inches.


(13) Duct structures shall be marked by using a dot with parall el boundary on


each side of the dot.


It·'


(14) In areas where there is a strong likelihood that any or all marker types


showing line location would be destroyed, offsets shall be placed on a perm anent surface.


However, offsets should be used only in conj unction with marks placed above a facility.


Offset spacing should be every third or fourth mark. For example, the following mark


would indicate the line is 16 feet from the end of the arrow.


<-----'
(15) In areas where cables are spliced, the faci lities should be located


individual ly as far as possible on both sides of the splice. When the signal is distorted


due to the near proximity to the splice a circle with "SP" should indicate the area of


distortion or "splice pit" .


9







(


Section 5.


Section 6.


Section 7.


This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the


Board of Commissioners of Fayette County.


All other ordinances or parts of ordinances which are in conflict with this


ordinance are hereby repealed.


In the event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance


shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall


in no manne r affect other sections, subsect ions, sentences, clauses or phrases of


this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section,


subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adj udged invalid or


unconstitutional were not a part thereof. The Board of Commissioners hereby


declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this ordinance if it had


known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or


unconstitutional.


10







SO ENACTED this J j ':9 day Of --,eJ;,a~""".lL.'7'=1- ' 2014.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF FAYETTE COUNTY


STEVE BROWN, Chairman
By:,_--,----_~~..L- _


Approved as to form:


County Atto rney r


11







515-9-4-.13 Procedures for Large Projects.
(l) Purpose and Scope:


(a) The purpose of this rule is to set forth procedures that provide for the waive r in
writing, of the 48 hour not ice and the 2 1 calendar day expiratio n for any projec ts that
cannot be located pursuan t to O.e.G.A. § 25-9-7. This Rule is necessary in order to
allow proper plann ing and sc heduling of the locating of utilit y fac ilit ies within the
geograph ical area of a designated "Large Project." Because most large projects require
multiple re- stakes , it has proven difficult and cumberso me for faci lity owner/opera tors to
respond to locate requests w ithin the 48 hour notice t ime frame normally requ ired by the
Georgia Utility Facility Protect ion Ac t ("GUFPA"). Excavators on such large projects
last ing for months an d even years ha ve sim ilarly found it cumberso me and op pressive to
have a locate ticket ex pire afte r 21 ca lendar days a nd have to reapply for renewal or
refreshing of such locate ticket repe ated ly over the life of a large project.


(b) This Rule allows for parameters to be set for all parties involved in a large project so
that such part ies ma y enjoy more flex ibility and less rig idity in re porti ng wit hout any loss
or sacrifice in the record-keeping, loca ting of utility fac ilities, prevent ion of damage to
such facil ities, and public safety protections which GUFPA was designed and intende d to
imple ment.


(c) Unless hereinafter spec if ica lly excepted, all other provisions of O.C.G.A . § 25-9- 1 et
seq., shall apply to large projects .


(2) Procedu res:


(a) Upon an excavator' s contacting the Ut ilities Protection Center (UPC) to procure a
locate ticket and upon the UPC's concluding that the proposed excavat ion qualif ies as a
large project t icket under Commiss ion Ut ility Rule 5 15- 9-4-.02(D (t hro ugh the process of
handling such request(s) for one or more locates), the UPC shall prov ide instructions for
excava tor(s) that the involved excavation project shall be treated as a large project under
Commission rules and that the exca vator has a duty to s ubmit to th e UPC a Large Projec t
Planning Meeting Not ificat ion.


(b) Upon the UPCs concluding that a part icular locate request or requests qua lify-,as a
Large Project as defined by Co mm iss ion Rule 5 15-9-4-. 020) . a mandatory Large Project
Plann ing Meeting Notificat ion sha ll be issued by the excavator, no less than 10 busin ess
days pr ior to beginning exc avat ion or blast ing act ivit ies , to the UPC, for immediate
forward ing to all facility owner/operators having fac ilities in the area . Such notification
sha ll inc lude the exca vator 's suggested da te, t ime , location , and contact perso n for the
proposed meeting. The date of the mandatory meet ing s hall be a mi nimum of 48 hours
after the notificat ion is submitted to the UPC, starting at 7:00 a.m . the next bus iness day
and excluding non-b usiness days. This mandatory large project mee t ing notification
requirement sha ll not app ly to re -ac tivated large projects that have cont inued in full force
and effect, and w ithout deactivation . Notw ithstanding the above, nothing in this ru le
shall prevent the excavator and the util ity facility ow ner/operato rs from choos ing to meet
otherwise.


EXHIBIT "A"







(c) After receiving the Large Project request , the UPC shall notify all affect ed facility
owners or operators of the mandatory Large Project Planning Meet ing. The mandatory
Large Project Planning Meeting sha ll be scheduled no less than 5 business days prior to
beginning excavation or blasting activit ies. Each fac ility owner/operator sha ll prov ide an
automated response to the UPC indicating agreement to the date and t ime of the
mandatory Large Project Planning Meeting within 2 bus iness days of such notice,
through the use of the Posit ive Response Informat ion System (PRIS).


(d) All provisions of this "Large Project" rule sha ll apply to the utili ty facility
owner/operator and all locates shall be conducted pursuant to these rules and the
negotiated marking agree ment aris ing here from.


(e) No later than two business days follow ing the mandatory Large Project Planning
Meeting, whichever comes first, the UPC shall upda te the sta tus of the t icke t from a
"Large Project Planning Meeting Not ification" to a "Large Project Excavation
Notification ." At that point , the "Large Project Excavat ion Notification" will become an
active t icket and will be transmitted by the UPC to all affected utility facility
owner/operators.


(I) During the life of the large project ticket, a ll requests for locates and notices of
marking performed that deviate from the marking agreement sha ll be documented
through the UPC. Once all excavat ion activities have been completed by a particular
excavator, such excavator will notify the UPC to close or de-act ivate the notification.


(g) Unless renewed beforehand by the excavator, all Large Project Excavation
Notifications w ill be automatica lly c losed/de-ac tivated once ninety (90) days have
elapsed from the date of activation. The excavator may re-new the not ification as
necessary so long as excavation on the project cont inues. The notifica tion w ill be
automatica lly c losed/deac t ivated ninety (90) days following the most recent renewal.


(3) The excavator and facility owner(s)/operator(s) or LOCATOR(S)/UTILITY(S) shall
enter into a negotiated written agree ment setting out the schedule for marking the project
(see attached example form) at the Large Project p lanning meeting. Steps shall be taken
to work together, includ ing the Large Project Planning Meet ing, so that a negotiated
marking plan may be agreed upon a llowing the faci lity ow ner(s)/operator(s) to locate the
utility fac ilities at a t ime reasonably in advance of the actua l start of excavation or
blasting for each phase of the work. A working relat ionship sha ll be established between
the excavator and the facility owner/operator representative s to reduce confusion at the
work site . Emergency phone numbers and contact people sha ll be identified for
notification of problems, de lays or changes in the marking plan. In addition to the Large
Project Planning Meet ing, the excavator shall conduct periodic ut ility coordination
meetings to enhance the communicat ion and progress of the planned schedule and
markings. IF FOR ANY REASON A FACILITY OWNER/OPERATOR CANNOT
ATTEND SUCH MEETING, THE FACILITY OWN ER/OPERATOR'S
REPRESENTATIVE MAY CONTACT THE EXCAVATOR AND MAKE OTHER
ARRANG EMENTS IF THE EXCAVATOR IS AGREEABLE, OR HAVE THE LINES
MARKED WITHIN THE 48 HOURS REQUIRED BY LAW (O.C.G.A. § 25-9-1 ET
SEQ.).


EVTxI B Tm "f.'\".LL .L.l -'-L -...







(4) The terms and conditions of such negotiated mark ing agreement must be in writing,
and executed by the excavator and the facilit y owner/operator or locate representative
(i.e. contrac t LOCATORIUTILITY for t he facili ty owner/operator) before excavat ion
commences. If the LOCATORIUTILITY is going to execute the negot iated marking
agreement on beha If of the fac i1ity owner/operator, the fac i1ity owner/operator sha II ha ve
on file with the UPC, written documentation of such grant of authority from the facility
owner/operator to the LOCATORIUTILITY. Such negot iated marking agreement and
comp liance with the terms thereof, sha ll const itute an exemptio n from the requirements
of subsect ions O.C.G.A . §§ 25-9-7(a)( I), (b)(I), (c), (e) and (k)(I) and subsections
O.C.G.A. §§ 25-9-6(c), (e) and (h) . The excavator and facili ty owner/operator shall each
retain a copy of the executed marking agreement.


(5) If the facilit y owner/opera tor fa ils to respond to the excavator's terms of the
negotiated markin g agreement or the fac ility owner/o perator notifies the exca vator that
the facilities cannot be marked w ithin the time frame delineated with in the negotiated
marking agreement and a mutua lIy agreeable date for mark ing cannot be reached, the
excavator may attempt to locate the facilities in accordance with subsection O.e.G.A. §
25-9-7(1) , then proceed with excavat ion or blasting provided reasonable care is exercised.
At the opti on of the excavator and as an alternative to the excavator ' s attempt ing to locate
the fac ilities at issue, such facilit ies sha ll revert back to the locate time -frame mandated
by O.C.G.A. § 25-9-7.


(6) Failure of any party to abide by the terms of the negotiated marking agreement shall
be a vio lat ion of the Comm ission 's Large Project Rule delineated herein. Any such
violation shall be gro unds for and may result in sanctions includ ing but not limited to
civil and/or criminal penalt ies be ing imposed upon the v io lat ing party in accordance with
Georg ia La w. Moreover, where an excavator fa ils to abide by the terms of the neg otiated
marking agreement and causes damage to a utility fac i1ity as a result, the excavator may
be subject to penalties delineated in O.e.G.A. § 25-9-1 3(7).


(7) Good Fa ith Ne gotiation Required. The fail ure of any party to negot iate in goo d faith
shall constitute a violation of the Comm issi on's Large Project Rules and may res ult in the
imposition of penalt ies under O.C.G.A. §§ 25-9-13 and/o r 46 -2-9 1 as well as any other
penalties that may be imposed pursuant to Georgia Law or the Commission's Rules. The
failure of any party to negotiate in good faith sha ll also result in all locates being
performed in accordance with the procedures and time lines se t forth in O.C.G.A. § 2:5'9
I et. seq. w ith the cost for all suc h locates to be paid for by the party having ne got iated in
bad faith .


(8) Any person holding an active large project ticket may a llow any dually author ized
subcontractors to work under such large project ticket provided the provisions of
O.C.G.A. § 25-9-6(g) a re met. For purposes of th is rule, any contractual agreeme nt
entered into pursuant to O.e.G.A. § 25-9-6(g) sha II be in writing.


(9) Nothing in this Ru le exempts any facility owner/operator, excavator ,
LOCATOR/UTILITY or any other person from the duty he or she would otherwise have
under GUFPA or the Comm ission ' s Utility Rules to report damage s to buried utility
facilit ies .


EXHIBIT "A"







SAMPLE SAMPLE


Large Project - Sample Utility Facility Locating Agreement


THIS AGREEMENT, made this -;--;-----;:-_ _ ;:---:,.--,,--- (month/date/ycar), by
and between , hereinafter called the EXCAVATOR, and
________, hereinafter called the LOCATORlUTILlTY: Due to the
construction of this large project , it will become necessary to make certain arrangements
for the locating of the utility facilit ies in accordance with the Georgia Public Service
Commission's Rule 515-9-4.


This Agreement is for the sole purpose of each party working together to minimize or
eliminate any damages to utility facilities as well as allow the EXCAVATOR to pursue
the work more expeditiously.


In consideration of the premises and the mutua I covenants of the parties hereinafter set
forth, it is agreed:


I. The LOCATOR/UTILITY sha ll provide the EXCAVATOR with correct contact
information, inc luding but not limited to, business address, business phone numbers,
business facsimile numbers and any ava ilable pager or cellu lar numbers for all availab le
locate technicians/representatives and the ir supervisors for this project at the time of
executing this Agreement.


2. Attached and made part of th is agreement is the negotiated marking plan, which is
prepared by the EXCAVATOR. Any modifications or changes to the negotiated marking
plan sha ll be reviewed and agreed to by both parties.


3. It is specifically understood that the EXCAVATOR will notify the
LOCATORIUTILITY by telephone, electronic mail or other means as provided by the
LOCATOR/UTILITY prior to commencing any excavation activities to ensure the
specific work sites have been marked.


4. If EXCAVATOR needs to move to a project work s ite involving excavation that has
not been marked by the LOCATOR/UTILITY or the LOCATORIUTILITY has not
confirme d the accuracy of the existing marks at such site, the EXCAVATOR shall make
contact with the LOCATORlUTILlTY and a llow time to respond. '.,


5. The LOCATORIUTILITY shall be available within 24 hours and sha ll respond within
such time frame in order for the work site to be marked or confirm the accuracy of the
existing marks.


6. If for any reason, the negotiated marking agreement is terminated, the Large Project
Procedures under the Georgia Public Service Commiss ion's Rule 5 15-9-4 are hereby
waived and the provisions of the Official Code of Georgia, Annotated Section 25-9-1 et.
seq, shall continue in full force and effect.


LOCATOR/UTILITY Name (print):'--- _


LOCATORIUTILITY Signature :, _







EXCAVATOR Name (print) :. _


EXCAVATOR Signature :. _


Date : _


(insert date on page one of the agreement)


SAMPLE SAMPLE


Authority O.C.G.A. Sees. 25-9-3, 25-9-6, 25-9-7, 25-9-13. History. Orig inal Rule entitled "Procedures for
Large Projects" adopted . F. May 19, 2006; eff. June 8, 2006. Amended: F. Dec. 21, 2006; eff. Jan. 10,
2007. Re peale d: New Rule of same t itle adopted . F. Feb. 10, 2009; eff. Mar. 2, 2009.


'R~,;~;.TTET/r "A"
_ J.1 :..... .J.. J.....:-..l. ..L







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 1 -


Senate Bill 117


By: Senators Jeffares of the 17th, Tippins of the 37th, Murphy of the 27th, Mullis of the


53rd, Gooch of the 51st and others 


AS PASSED 


A BILL TO BE ENTITLED


AN ACT


To amend Chapter 9 of Title 25 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to1


blasting or excavating near utility facilities, so as to revise and add definitions; to provide for2


responses by facility owners and operators regarding design locate requests; to clarify the3


effect of a design locate request; to require that the time frame for the requested excavation4


be defined in a locate request; to provide that white lining shall not obstruct certain signage5


and markings; to limit the expansion of tracts for blasting or excavation; to revise the time6


frame for acting on locate requests; to provide for strict liability for certain costs by facility7


owners and operators under certain circumstances; to provide for the promulgation of certain8


rules by the Public Service Commission; to provide for the use of reasonable care by9


excavators to protect utilities in tolerance zones; to provide for direction with regard to10


certain enforcement actions; to change the composition of the advisory committee and11


provide for an attendance policy at its meetings; to provide for related matters; to repeal12


conflicting laws; and for other purposes.13


BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF GEORGIA:14


SECTION 1.15


Chapter 9 of Title 25 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to blasting or16


excavating near utility facilities, is amended by revising Code Section 25-9-3, relating to17


definitions, as follows:18


"25-9-3.19


As used in this chapter, the term:20


(1)  'Abandoned utility facility' means a utility facility taken out of service by a facility21


owner or operator on or after January 1, 2001.22


(2)  'Blasting' means any operation by which the level or grade of land is changed or by23


which earth, rock, buildings, structures, or other masses or materials are rended, torn,24


demolished, moved, or removed by the detonation of dynamite or any other explosive25


agent.26



FJones

Typewritten Text



FJones

Typewritten Text



FJones

Typewritten Text

Section B







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 2 -


(3)  'Business days' means Monday through Friday, excluding the following holidays:27


New Year's Day, Birthday of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Memorial Day, Independence28


Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and the following Friday, Christmas Eve, and29


Christmas Day.  Any such holiday that falls on a Saturday shall be observed on the30


preceding Friday.  Any such holiday that falls on a Sunday shall be observed on the31


following Monday.32


(4)  'Business hours' means the time from 7:00 A.M. to 4:30 P.M. local time on business33


days.34


(5)  'Commission' means the Public Service Commission.35


(6)  'Corporation' means any corporation; municipal corporation; county; authority;36


joint-stock company; partnership; association; business trust; cooperative; organized37


group of persons, whether incorporated or not; or receiver or receivers or trustee or38


trustees of any of the foregoing.39


(7)  'Damage' means any impact or exposure that results in the need to repair a utility40


facility or sewer lateral due to the weakening or the partial or complete destruction of the41


facility or sewer lateral including, but not limited to, the protective coating, lateral42


support, cathodic protection, or the housing for the line, device, sewer lateral, or facility.43


(8)  'Design locate request' means a communication to the utilities protection center in44


which a request for locating existing utility facilities for bidding, predesign, or advance45


planning purposes is made.  A design locate request may shall not be used for excavation46


purposes.47


(9)  'Designate' means to stake or mark on the surface of the tract or parcel of land the48


location of a utility facility or sewer lateral.49


(10)  'Emergency' means a sudden or unforeseen occurrence involving a clear and50


imminent danger to life, health, or property; the interruption of utility services; or repairs51


to transportation facilities that require immediate action.52


(11)  'Emergency notice' means a communication to the utilities protection center to alert53


the involved facility owners or operators of the need to excavate due to an emergency that54


requires immediate excavation.55


(12)  'Excavating' means any operation by which the level or grade of land is changed or56


using mechanized equipment or explosives to move earth, rock, or other material below57


existing grade.  This is moved and includes, without limitation, grading, trenching,58


digging, ditching, augering, scraping, directional boring, and pile driving. Such term,59


however, does not include routine road surface scraping maintenance includes but is not60


limited to augering, blasting, boring, digging, ditching, dredging, drilling, driving-in,61


grading, plowing-in, ripping, scraping, trenching, and tunneling.  'Excavating' shall not62


include pavement milling or pavement repair that does not exceed the depth of the63







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 3 -


existing pavement or 12 inches, whichever is less.  The term shall not include other64


routine roadway road or railroad maintenance activities carried out by road maintenance65


or railroad employees or contractors, provided that such activities occur entirely within66


the right of way of a public road, street, railroad, or highway of the state; are carried out67


with reasonable care so as to protect any utility facilities and sewer laterals placed in the68


right of way by permit; are carried out within the limits of any original excavation on the69


traveled way, shoulders, or drainage ditches of a public road, street, railroad, or highway,70


and do not exceed 18 inches in depth below the grade existing prior to such activities;71


and, if involving the replacement of existing structures guard rails and sign posts, replace72


such structures guard rails and sign posts in their previous locations and at their previous73


depth.  'Excavating' shall not include normal farming activities.74


(13)  'Excavator' means any person engaged in excavating or blasting as defined in this75


Code section.76


(14)  'Extraordinary circumstances' means circumstances other than normal operating77


conditions which exist and make it impractical or impossible for a facility owner or78


operator to comply with the provisions of this chapter.  Such extraordinary circumstances79


may include, but shall not be limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, floods, ice and snow, and80


acts of God.81


(15)  'Facility owner or operator' means any person or entity with the sole exception of82


a homeowner who owns, operates, or controls the operation of a utility facility.83


(16)  'Farming activities' means the tilling of the fields related to agricultural activities but84


does not include other types of mechanized excavating on a farm.85


(17)  'Horizontal directional drilling' or 'HDD' means a type of trenchless excavation that86


uses guidable boring equipment to excavate in an essentially horizontal plane without87


disturbing or with minimal disturbance to the ground surface.88


(17)(18)  'Large project' means an excavation that involves more work to locate utility89


facilities than can reasonably be completed within the requirements of subsection (a) of90


Code Section 25-9-7.91


(18)(19)  'Local governing authority' means a county, municipality, or local authority92


created by or pursuant to general, local, or special Act of the General Assembly, or by the93


Constitution of the State of Georgia.  The term also includes any local authority that is94


created or activated by an appropriate ordinance or resolution of the governing body of95


a county or municipality individually or jointly with other political subdivisions of this96


state.97


(19)(20)  'Locate request' means a communication between an excavator and the utilities98


protection center in which a request for locating designating utility facilities, sewer99


laterals, or both is processed.100







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 4 -


(20)(21)  'Locator' means a person who is acting on behalf of facility owners and101


operators in designating the location of the utility facilities and sewer laterals of such102


owners and operators.103


(21)(22)  'Mechanized excavating equipment' means all equipment which is powered by104


any motor, engine, or hydraulic or pneumatic device and which is used for excavating.105


(23)  'Milling' means the process of grinding asphaltic concrete.106


(22)(24) 'Minimally intrusive excavation methods' means methods of excavation that107


minimize the potential for damage to utility facilities and sewer laterals.  Examples108


include, but are not limited to, air entrainment/vacuum extraction systems and water109


jet/vacuum excavation systems operated by qualified personnel and careful hand tool110


usage and other methods as determined by the Public Service Commission.  The term111


does not include the use of trenchless excavation.112


(23)(25)  'Permanent marker' means a visible indication of the approximate location of113


a utility facility or sewer lateral that can reasonably be expected to remain in position for114


the life of the facility.  The term includes, but is not limited to, sewer cleanouts; water115


meter boxes; and etching, cutting, or attaching medallions or other industry accepted116


surface markers to curbing, pavement, or other similar visible fixed surfaces.  All117


permanent markers other than sewer cleanouts, water meter boxes, or any other visible118


component of a utility facility that establish the exact location of the facility must be119


placed accurately in accordance with Code Section 25-9-9 and be located within the120


public right of way.  Sewer cleanouts, water meter boxes, or any other visible component121


of a utility facility that establishes the exact location of the facility must be located within122


ten feet of the public right of way to be considered a permanent marker.123


(24(26)  'Person' means an individual, firm, joint venture, partnership, association, local124


governing authority, state, or other governmental unit, authority, department, agency, or125


a corporation and shall include any trustee, receiver, assignee, employee, agent, or126


personal representative thereof.127


(25)(27)  'Positive response information system' or 'PRIS' means the automated128


information system operated and maintained by the utilities protection center at its129


location that allows excavators, locators, facility owners or operators, and other affected130


parties to determine the status of a locate request or design locate request.131


(28)  'Routine road maintenance' means work that is planned and performed on a routine132


basis to maintain and preserve the condition of the public road system and includes133


routine road surface scraping, mowing grass, animal removal, cleaning of inlets and134


culverts, trash removal, striping and striping removal, and cutting of trees; however,135


stump removal shall be considered excavation.136







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 5 -


(26)(29)  'Service area' means a contiguous area or territory which encompasses the137


distribution system or network of utility facilities by means of which a facility owner or138


operator provides utility service.139


(27)(30)  'Sewer lateral' means an individual customer service line which transports waste140


water from one or more building units to a utility owned sewer facility.141


(28)(31) 'Sewer system owner or operator' means the owner or operator of a sewer142


system.  Sewer systems shall be considered to extend to the connection to the customer's143


facilities.144


(29)(32)  'Traffic control devices' means all roadway or railroad signs, sign structures, or145


signals and all associated infrastructure on which the public relies for informational,146


regulatory, or warning messages concerning the public or railroad rights of way.147


(30)(33)  'Traffic management system' means a network of traffic control devices,148


monitoring sensors, and personnel, with all associated communications and power149


services, including all system control and management centers.150


(31)(34)  'Tolerance zone' means the width of the utility facility or sewer lateral plus 24151


18 inches on either side of the outside edge of the utility facility or sewer lateral on a152


horizontal plane.153


(32)(35)  'Trenchless excavation' means a method of excavation that uses boring154


equipment to excavate with minimal or no disturbance to the ground surface and includes155


horizontal directional drilling.156


(33)(36)  'Unlocatable facility' means an underground facility that cannot be marked with157


reasonable accuracy using generally accepted techniques or equipment commonly used158


to designate utility facilities and sewer laterals.  This term includes, but is not limited to,159


nonconductive utility facilities and sewer laterals and nonmetallic underground facilities160


that have no trace wires or records that indicate a specific location.161


(34)(37) 'Utilities protection center' or 'UPC' means the corporation or other organization162


formed by facility owners or operators to provide a joint notification service for the163


purpose of receiving advance notification from persons planning to blast or excavate and164


distributing such notifications to its affected facility owner or operator members.165


(35)(38)  'Utility facility' means an underground or submerged conductor, pipe, or166


structure used or installed for use in providing electric or communications service or in167


carrying, providing, or gathering gas, oil or oil products, sewage, waste water, storm168


drainage, or water or other liquids.  All utility facilities shall be considered to extend up169


to the connection to the customer's facilities.  The term does not include traffic control170


devices, traffic management systems, or sewer laterals.171



mbergen

Highlight







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 6 -


(39)  'White lining' means marking the route of the excavation either electronically or172


with white paint, flags, stakes, or a combination of such methods to outline the dig site173


prior to notifying the UPC and before the locator arrives on the job."174


SECTION 2.175


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-4, relating to design locate176


request and response, as follows:177


"25-9-4.178


(a)  Any person may submit a design locate request to the UPC. Such design locate request179


shall:180


(1)  Describe the tract or parcel of land for which the design locate request has been181


submitted with sufficient particularity, as defined by policies developed and promulgated182


by the UPC, to enable the facility owner or operator to ascertain the precise tract or parcel183


of land involved; and184


(2)  State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who has submitted the185


design locate request, as well as the name, address, and telephone number of any other186


person authorized to review any records subject to inspection as provided in paragraph187


(3) of subsection (b) of this Code section.188


(b)  Within ten working days after a design locate request has been submitted to the UPC189


for a proposed project, the facility owner or operator shall respond by one of the following190


methods the method requested by the person calling in the design locate request:191


(1)  Designate or cause to be designated by a locator in accordance with Code Section192


Sections 25-9-7 and 25-9-9 the location of all utility facilities and sewer laterals within193


the area of the proposed excavation;194


(2)  Provide to the person submitting the design locate request the best available195


description of all utility facilities and sewer laterals in the area of proposed excavation,196


which might include drawings of utility facilities and sewer laterals already built in the197


area, or other facility records that are maintained by the facility owner or operator; or198


(3)  Allow the person submitting the design locate request or any other authorized person199


to inspect or copy the drawings or other records for all utility facilities and sewer laterals200


within the proposed area of excavation.201


(c)  Upon responding using any of the methods provided in subsection (b) of this Code202


section, the facility owner or operator shall provide the response to the UPC in accordance203


with UPC procedures.204


(d)  A design locate request shall not be used for excavation purposes."205







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 7 -


SECTION 3.206


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-6, relating to prerequisites207


to blasting or excavating and marking of sites, as follows:208


"25-9-6.209


(a)  No person shall commence, perform, or engage in blasting or in excavating with210


mechanized excavating equipment on any tract or parcel of land in any county in this state211


unless and until the person planning the blasting or excavating has given 48 hours' notice212


by submitting a locate request to the UPC, beginning the next business day after such213


notice is provided, excluding hours during days other than business days. Any person214


performing excavation is responsible for being aware of all information timely entered into215


the PRIS prior to the commencement of excavation. If, prior to the expiration of the 48216


hour waiting period, all identified facility owners or operators have responded to the locate217


request, and if all have indicated that their facilities are either not in conflict or have been218


marked, then the person planning to perform excavation or blasting shall be authorized to219


commence work, subject to the other requirements of this Code section, without waiting220


the full 48 hours. The 48 hours' notice shall not be required for excavating where minimally221


intrusive excavation methods are used exclusively. Any locate request received by the UPC222


after business hours shall be deemed to have been received by the UPC the next business223


day. Such locate request shall:224


(1)  Describe the tract or parcel of land upon which the blasting or excavation is to take225


place with sufficient particularity, as defined by policies developed and promulgated by226


the UPC, to enable the facility owner or operator to ascertain the precise tract or parcel227


of land involved;228


(2)  State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who will engage in the229


blasting or excavating;230


(3)  Describe the type of blasting or excavating to be engaged in by the person; and231


(4)  Designate the date upon which the blasting or excavating will commence Define the232


time frame in which requested excavation may occur.233


(b)  In the event the location upon which the blasting or excavating is to take place cannot234


be described with sufficient particularity to enable the facility owner or operator to235


ascertain the precise tract or parcel involved, the person proposing the blasting or236


excavating shall mark the route or boundary of the site of the proposed blasting or237


excavating by means of white paint, white stakes, or white flags if practical, or schedule238


an on-site meeting with the locator or facility owner or operator and inform the UPC,239


within a reasonable time, of the results of such meeting.  The person marking a site with240


white lining shall comply with the rules and regulations of the Department of241







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 8 -


Transportation as to the use of such markings so as to not to obstruct signs, pavement242


markings, pavement, or other safety devices.243


(c)  Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, notice given pursuant to subsection244


(a) of this Code section shall expire 21 calendar days following the date of such notice, and245


no blasting or excavating undertaken pursuant to this notice shall continue after such time246


has expired. In the event that the blasting or excavating which is the subject of the notice247


given pursuant to subsection (a) of this Code section will not be completed within 21248


calendar days following the date of such notice, an additional notice must be given in249


accordance with subsection (a) of this Code section for the locate request to remain valid.250


Additional notices for an existing request shall not expand the tract or parcel of land upon251


which the blasting or excavation is to take place.252


(d)  For emergencies, notice shall expire at 7:00 A.M. three business days after the253


notification is made to the UPC.254


(e)  Except for those persons submitting design locate requests, no person, including255


facility owners or operators, shall request marking of a site through the UPC unless256


excavating is scheduled to commence.  In addition, no person shall make repeated requests257


for re-marking, unless the repeated request is required for excavating to continue or due to258


circumstances not reasonably within the control of such person.  Any person who willfully259


fails to comply with this subsection shall be liable to the facility owner or operator260


for $100.00 or for actual costs, whichever is greater, for each repeated request for261


re-marking.262


(f)  If, subsequent to giving the notice to the UPC required by subsection (a) of this Code263


section, a person planning excavating determines that such work will require blasting, then264


such person shall promptly so notify the UPC and shall refrain from any blasting until the265


facility owner or operator responds within 24 hours, excluding hours during days other than266


business days, following receipt by the UPC of such notice.267


(g)  When a locate request is made in accordance with subsection (a) of this Code section,268


excavators other than the person planning the blasting or excavating may conduct such269


activity, provided that the person planning the blasting or excavating shall remain270


responsible for ensuring that any stakes or other markings placed in accordance with this271


chapter remain in place and reasonably visible until such blasting or excavating is272


completed; and provided, further, that such blasting or excavating is:273


(1)  Performed on the tract or parcel of land identified in the locate request;274


(2)  Performed by a person authorized by and having a contractual relationship with the275


person planning the blasting or excavating;276


(3)  The type of blasting or excavating described in the locate request; and277


(4)  Carried out in accordance with all other requirements of this chapter.278







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 9 -


(h)  Facility owners or operators may bill an excavator their costs for any requests for279


re-marking other than for re-marks with no more than five individual addresses on a single280


locate request.  Such costs shall be documented actual costs and shall not exceed $100.00281


per re-mark request."282


SECTION 4.283


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-7, relating to determining284


whether utility facilities are present, information to UPC, noncompliance, future utility285


facilities, and abandoned utility facilities, as follows:286


"25-9-7.287


(a)(1)  Within 48 hours beginning the next business day after the business day following288


receipt by the UPC of the locate request filed in accordance with Code Section 25-9-6,289


excluding hours during days other than business days, each facility owner or operator290


shall determine whether or not utility facilities are located on the tract or parcel of land291


upon which the excavating or blasting is to occur.  If utility facilities are determined to292


be present, the facility owner or operator shall designate, through stakes, flags, permanent293


markers, or other marks on the surface of the tract or parcel of land, the location of utility294


facilities.  This subsection shall not apply to large projects.295


(2)  Designation of the location of utility facilities through staking, flagging, permanent296


markers, or other marking shall be in accordance with the American Public Works297


Association (APWA) color code in place at the time the location of the utility facility is298


designated.  Additional marking requirements beyond color code, if any, shall be299


prescribed by rules and regulations promulgated by the Public Service Commission.300


(3)  A facility owner or operator is not required to mark its own facilities within 48 hours301


if the facility owner or operator or its agents are the only parties performing the302


excavation; however, such facilities shall be designated prior to the actual start of303


excavation.304


(b)(1)  Within 48 hours beginning the next business day after the business day following305


receipt by the UPC of the locate request filed in accordance with Code Section 25-9-6,306


excluding hours during days other than business days, each sewer system owner or307


operator shall determine whether or not sewer laterals are located or likely to be located308


on the tract or parcel of land upon which the excavating or blasting is to occur.  If sewer309


laterals are determined to be present or likely to be present, then the sewer system owner310


or operator shall assist in designating sewer laterals up to the edge of the public right of311


way.  Such assistance shall not constitute ownership or operation of the sewer lateral by312


the sewer system owner or operator.  Good faith compliance with provisions of this313


subsection in response to a locate request shall constitute full compliance with this314







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 10 -


chapter, and no person shall be found liable to any party for damages or injuries as a315


result of performing in compliance with the requirements of this subsection.316


(2)  To assist in designating sewer laterals, the sewer system owner or operator shall317


provide its best available information regarding the location of the sewer laterals to the318


excavator.  This information shall be conveyed to the excavator in a manner that may319


include, but shall not be limited to, any one of the following methods:320


(A)  Marking the location of sewer laterals in accordance with subsection (a) of this321


section, provided that:322


(i)  Any sewer lateral designated using the best available information shall constitute323


a good faith attempt and shall be deemed to be in compliance with this subsection,324


provided that such mark represents only the best available information of the sewer325


system owner or operator and may not be accurate; and326


(ii)  If a sewer lateral is unlocatable, a triangular green mark shall be placed at the327


sewer main pointing at the address in question to indicate the presence of an328


unlocatable sewer lateral;329


(B)  Providing electronic copies of or delivering the records through facsimile or by330


other means to an agreed upon location within 48 hours beginning the next business day331


after the business day following receipt by the UPC of the locate request filed in332


accordance with Code Section 25-9-6, excluding hours during days other than business333


days; provided, however, that for local governing authorities that receive fewer than 50334


locate requests annually, the local governing authority may designate the agreed upon335


location and communicate such designation to the excavator;336


(C)  Arranging to meet the excavator on site to provide the best available information337


about the location of the sewer laterals;338


(D)  Providing the records through other processes and to other locations approved by339


documented agreement between the excavator and the facility owner or operator; or340


(E)  Any other reasonable means of conveyance approved by the commission after341


receiving recommendations from the advisory committee, provided that such means are342


equivalent to or exceed the provisions of subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of this343


paragraph.344


(c)  Each facility owner or operator, either upon determining that no utility facility or sewer345


lateral is present on the tract or parcel of land or upon completion of the designation of the346


location of any utility facilities or sewer laterals on the tract or parcel of land as required347


by subsection (a) or (b) of this Code section, shall provide this information to the UPC in348


accordance with procedures developed by the UPC, which may include the use of the349


PRIS.  In no event shall such notice be provided later than midnight of the second business350







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 11 -


day following receipt by the UPC of actual notice filed in accordance with Code Section 25-9-6.351


(d)  In the event the facility owner or operator is unable to designate the location of the352


utility facilities or sewer laterals due to extraordinary circumstances, the facility owner or353


operator shall notify the UPC and provide an estimated completion date in accordance with354


procedures developed by the UPC, which may include the use of the PRIS.355


(e)   If, at the end of the time period specified in subsections (a) and (b) of this Code356


section, any facility owner or operator has not complied with the requirements of357


subsections (a), (b), and (c) of this Code section, as applicable, the UPC shall issue a358


second request to each such facility owner or operator.  If the facility owner or operator359


does not respond to this additional request by 12:00 Noon of that business day, either by360


notifying the UPC in accordance with procedures developed by the UPC that no utility361


facilities or sewer laterals are present on the tract or parcel of land, or by designating the362


location of such utility facilities or sewer laterals in accordance with the provisions of363


subsections (a) and (b) of this Code section, as applicable, then the person providing notice364


pursuant to Code Section 25-9-6 may proceed with the excavating or blasting, provided365


that there is no visible and obvious evidence of the presence of an unmarked utility facility366


or sewer lateral on the tract or parcel of land.  Such person shall not be subject to any367


liability resulting from damage to the utility facility or sewer lateral as a result of the368


blasting or excavating, provided that such person complies with the requirements of Code369


Section 25-9-8.370


(f)  If visible and obvious evidence of the presence of an unmarked utility facility or sewer371


lateral does exist and the facility owner or operator either refuses to comply with372


subsections (a) through (d) of this Code section, as applicable, or is not a member of the373


UPC, then the excavator shall attempt to designate such facility or sewer lateral prior to374


excavating.  The facility owner or operator shall be strictly liable for the actual costs375


associated with the excavator designating such utility facilities and sewer laterals and any376


associated downtime.  Such costs shall not exceed $100.00 or documented actual costs,377


whichever is greater, for each locate request.378


(g)  All utility facilities installed by facility owners or operators on or after January 1, 2001,379


shall be installed in a manner which will make them locatable using a generally accepted380


electronic locating method.  All sewer laterals installed on or after January 1, 2006, shall381


be installed in a manner which will make them locatable by facility owners or operators382


using a generally accepted electronic locating method.  In the event that an unlocatable383


utility facility or unlocatable sewer lateral becomes exposed when the facility owner or384


operator is present or in the case of sewer laterals when the sewer utility owner or operator385


is present on or after January 1, 2006, such utility facility or sewer lateral shall be made386


locatable through the use of a permanent marker or an updating of permanent records.387







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 12 -


(h)  Facility owners or operators shall either maintain recorded information concerning the388


location and other characteristics of abandoned utility facilities, maintain such abandoned389


utility facilities in a locatable manner, or remove such abandoned utility facilities.  Facility390


owners or operators shall provide information on abandoned utility facilities, when391


possible, in response to a locate request or design locate request.  When the presence of an392


abandoned facility within an excavation site is known, the facility owner or operator should393


attempt to locate and mark designate the abandoned facility or provide information to the394


excavator regarding such facilities.  When located or exposed, all abandoned utility395


facilities and sewer laterals shall be treated as live utility facilities and sewer laterals.396


(i)  Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, a facility owner or operator397


may use a locator to designate any or all utility facilities and sewer laterals.  The use of a398


locator shall not relieve the facility owner or operator of any responsibility under this399


chapter.  However, by contract a facility owner or operator may be indemnified by a locator400


for any failure on the part of the locator to comply with the provisions of this chapter.401


(j)  By January 1, 2006, the advisory committee shall propose to the Public Service402


Commission rules and processes specific to the locating of large projects.  These rules shall403


include, but shall not be limited to, the establishment of detailed processes.  Such rules may404


also include changes in the time period allowed for a facility owner or operator to comply405


with the provisions of this chapter and to the time period for which designations are valid.406


The commission shall promulgate rules addressing this subsection no later than June 1,407


2006 Large project rules shall be promulgated by the Public Service Commission.  These408


rules shall include, but shall not be limited to, the establishment of detailed processes.409


Such rules may also include changes in the time period allowed for a facility owner or410


operator to comply with the provisions of this chapter and the time period for which411


designations are valid.412


(k)(1)  Within 48 hours beginning the next business day after the business day following413


receipt by the UPC of the locate request filed in accordance with Code Section 25-9-6,414


excluding hours during days other than business days, each facility owner or operator415


shall determine whether or not unlocatable facilities other than sewer laterals are present.416


In the event that such facilities are determined to be present, the facility owner or operator417


shall exercise reasonable care in locating such facilities. The exercise of reasonable care418


shall require, at a minimum, the use of the best available information to designate the419


facilities and notification to the UPC of such attempted location. Placing markers or420


otherwise leaving evidence of locations of facilities is deemed to be an acceptable form421


of notification to the excavator or locator.422


(2)  This subsection shall not apply to sewer laterals."423







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 13 -


SECTION 5.424


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-8, relating to treatment of gas425


pipes and other underground utility facilities by blasters and excavators, as follows:426


"25-9-8.427


(a)  Persons engaged in blasting or in excavating with mechanized excavating equipment428


shall not strike, damage, injure, or loosen any utility facility or sewer lateral which has429


been staked, flagged, or marked in accordance with this chapter.430


(b)  When excavating or blasting is to take place within the tolerance zone, the excavator431


shall exercise such reasonable care as may be necessary for the protection of the utility432


facility or sewer lateral, including permanent markers and paint placed to designate utility433


facilities.  This protection shall include, but may not be limited to, at least one of the434


following based on geographical and climate conditions: hand digging, pot holing, soft435


digging, vacuum excavation methods, pneumatic hand tools, or other technical methods436


that may be developed.  Other mechanical methods may be used with the approval of the437


facility owner or operator, or other generally accepted methods.  For parallel type438


excavations, the existing facility shall be exposed at intervals as often as necessary to avoid439


damages.440


(c)  If the precise location of the underground facilities cannot be determined by the441


excavator, the facility owner or operator thereof shall be notified by the excavator so that442


the operator and the excavator shall work together to determine the precise location of the443


underground facilities prior to continuing the excavation.444


(c)(d)  When conducting trenchless excavation the excavator must exercise reasonable care,445


as described in subsection (b) of this Code section, and shall take additional care to attempt446


to prevent damage to utility facilities and sewer laterals.  The recommendations of the447


HDD consortium applicable to the performance of trenchless excavation set out in the448


document 'Horizontal Directional Drilling Good Practice Guidelines,' dated May, 2001, are449


adopted by reference as a part of this subsection to describe such additional care.  The450


advisory committee may recommend to the commission more stringent criteria as it deems451


necessary to define additional care and the commission is authorized to adopt additional452


criteria to define additional care.453


(d)(e)  Any person engaged in blasting or in excavating with mechanized excavating454


equipment who strikes, damages, injures, or loosens any utility facility or sewer lateral,455


regardless of whether the utility facility or sewer lateral is marked, shall immediately cease456


such blasting or excavating and notify the UPC and the appropriate facility owner or457


operator, if known.  Upon receiving notice from the excavator or the UPC, the facility458


owner or operator shall send personnel to the location as soon as possible to effect459


temporary or permanent repair of the damage.  Until such time as the damage has been460







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 14 -


repaired, no person shall engage in excavating or blasting activities that may cause further461


damage to the utility facility or sewer lateral except as provided in Code Section 25-9-12."462


SECTION 6.463


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-9, relating to degree of464


accuracy required in utility facility location information, effect of inaccurate information on465


liability of blaster or excavator, and liability of facility owners for losses resulting from lack466


of accurate information, as follows:467


"25-9-9.468


(a)  For the purposes of this chapter, the location of utility facilities which is provided by469


a facility owner or operator in accordance with subsection (a) of Code Section 25-9-7 to470


any person must be accurate to within 24 18 inches measured horizontally from the outer471


edge of either side of such utility facilities. If any utility facility becomes damaged by an472


excavator due to the furnishing of inaccurate information as to its location by the facility473


owner or operator, such excavator shall not be subject to any liability resulting from474


damage to the utility facility as a result of the blasting or excavating, provided that such475


person complies with the requirements of Code Section 25-9-8 and there is no visible and476


obvious evidence to the excavator of the presence of a mismarked utility facility.477


(b)  Upon documented evidence that the person seeking information as to the location of478


utility facilities has incurred losses or expenses due to inaccurate information, lack of479


information, or unreasonable delays in supplying information by the facility owners or480


operators, the facility owners or operators shall be liable to that person for any such losses481


or expenses."482


SECTION 7.483


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-13, relating to penalties for484


violations of chapter, bonds, enforcement, advisory committee, and dispose of settlement485


recommendations, as follows:486


"25-9-13.487


(a)  Any person who violates the requirements of subsections (a), (f), or (g) of Code488


Section 25-9-6 and whose subsequent excavating or blasting damages utility facilities or489


sewer laterals shall be strictly liable for:490


(1)  All costs incurred by the facility owner or operator in repairing or replacing its491


damaged facilities; and492


(2)  Any injury or damage to persons or property resulting from damaging the utility493


facilities and sewer laterals.494







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 15 -


(b)  Each local governing authority is authorized to require by ordinance any bonds on495


utility contractors or on  persons performing excavation or blasting within the public right496


of way or any dedicated utility easement as it may determine to assure compliance with497


subsection (a) of this Code section.498


(c)  Any person who violates the requirements of Code Section 25-9-6 and whose499


subsequent excavating or blasting damages utility facilities or sewer laterals shall also500


indemnify the affected facility owner or operator against all claims or costs incurred, if any,501


for personal injury, property damage, or service interruptions resulting from damaging the502


utility facilities and sewer laterals.  Such obligation to indemnify shall not apply to any503


county, city, town, or state agency to the extent except as permitted by law.  In any civil504


action by a facility owner or operator to recover the costs of repairing or replacing facilities505


damaged through violation of Code Section 25-9-6 or 25-9-8, those costs shall be506


calculated utilizing generally accepted accounting principles.507


(d)  In addition to the other provisions of this Code section, a professional licensing board508


shall be authorized to suspend or revoke any professional or occupational license,509


certificate, or registration issued to a person pursuant to Title 43 whenever such person510


violates has repeatedly violated the requirements of Code Section 25-9-6 or 25-9-8.511


(e)  Subsections (a), (c), and (d) of this Code section shall not apply to any person who512


shall commence, perform, or engage in blasting or in excavating with mechanized513


equipment on any tract or parcel of land in any county in this state if the facility owner or514


operator to which notice was given respecting such blasting or excavating with mechanized515


equipment as prescribed in subsection (a) of Code Section 25-9-6 has failed to comply with516


Code Section 25-9-7 or has failed to become a member of the UPC as required by Code517


Section 25-9-5.518


(f)  The enforcement provisions of this Code section shall not apply to any person who519


shall commence, perform, or engage in blasting or in excavating with mechanized520


equipment within the curb lines or edges of the pavement of any public road and who521


causes damage to a utility facility located within the roadway hard surface or the graded522


aggregate base therein if such person has complied with the provisions of this chapter and523


there is no indication that a utility facility is in conflict with the proposed excavation.524


(f)(g)  The commission shall enforce the provisions of this chapter.  The commission may525


promulgate any rules and regulations necessary to implement the commission's authority526


to enforce this chapter.527


(g)(1)(h)(1)  The Governor shall appoint an advisory committee consisting of persons528


who are employees or officials of or who represent the interests of:529


(A)  One member to represent the Georgia Department of Transportation;530







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 16 -


(B)  One member to represent water systems or water and sewer systems owned or531


operated by local governing authorities;532


(C)  One member to represent the utilities protection center;533


(D)  One member to represent water systems or water and sewer systems owned or534


operated by counties;535


(E)  One member to represent water systems or water and sewer systems owned or536


operated by municipalities;537


(F)  One member to represent the nonmunicipal electric industry;538


(G)  Three Five members to represent excavators to include the following:539


(i)  One licensed utility contractor;540


(ii)  One licensed general contractor;541


(iii)  One licensed plumber;542


(iv)  One landscape contractor; and543


(v)  One highway contractor;544


(H)  One member to represent locators;545


(I)  One member to represent the nonmunicipal telecommunications industry;546


(J)  One member to represent the nonmunicipal natural gas industry;547


(K)  One member to represent municipal gas, electric, or telecommunications providers;548


and549


(L)  The commission chairperson or such chairperson's designee.550


The commission chairperson or his or her designee shall serve as chairperson of the551


advisory committee and shall cast a vote only in the case of a tie.  Persons appointed to552


the advisory committee shall have expert knowledge of this chapter and specific553


operations expertise with the subject matter encompassed by the provisions of this554


chapter.   The new advisory committee shall be established within 60 days of July 1,555


2005.556


(2)  The advisory committee shall establish rules of operation including an attendance557


policy.  In the event a committee member resigns or fails to meet the criteria of the558


attendance policy, the advisory committee shall appoint an interim member to represent559


the same stakeholder group until such time as the Governor appoints a replacement.560


(3)  The advisory committee shall assist the commission in the enforcement of this561


chapter, make recommendations to the commission regarding rules and regulations, and562


perform duties to be assigned by the commission including, but not limited to, the review563


of reported violations of this chapter and the preparation of recommendations to the564


commission as to the appropriate penalties to impose on persons violating the provisions565


of this chapter.566







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 17 -


(3)(4)  The members of the advisory committee shall be immune, individually and jointly,567


from civil liability for any act or omission done or made in the performance of their568


duties while serving as members of such advisory committee, but only in the absence of569


willful misconduct.570


(h)(1)(i)(1)  Commission enforcement of this chapter shall follow the procedures571


described in this subsection.  Nothing in this subsection shall limit the authority of the572


commission delegated from the federal government and authorized in other state law.573


(2)(A)  The commission is not authorized to impose civil penalties on any local574


governing authority except as provided in this paragraph.  The commission may575


recommend training for local governing authorities in response to any probable or576


proven violation.  On or after January 1, 2007, civil Civil penalties may be577


recommended for or imposed on any local governing authority for refusal to comply578


with the requirements of Code Section 25-9-7 or for other violations of Code579


Section 25-9-7 that result in injury to people, damage to property, or the interruption580


of utility service in the event that investigators find that a local governing authority has581


demonstrated a pattern of willful noncompliance.  Civil penalties may be recommended582


or imposed on or after January 1, 2006, for violations of provisions of this chapter other583


than Code Section 25-9-7 in the event that investigators find that the severity of an584


excavation violation warrants civil penalties or that a local governing authority has585


demonstrated a pattern of willful noncompliance.  Any such civil penalty shall be586


recommended or imposed in accordance with a tiered penalty structure designed for587


local governing authorities.  In the event that the investigators determine that a local588


governing authority has made a good faith effort to comply with this chapter, the589


investigators shall not recommend a civil penalty.  For purposes of this subsection590


'refusal to comply' means that a utility facility owner or operator does not respond in591


PRIS to a locate request, does not respond to a direct telephone call to locate designate592


their facilities, or other such direct refusal.  Refusal to comply does not mean a case593


where the volume of requests or some other mitigating circumstance prevents the utility594


owner or operator from locating in accordance with Code Section 25-9-7.595


(B)  No later than January 1, 2006, the advisory committee shall recommend to the596


commission for adoption a tiered penalty structure for local governing authorities.  Such597


structure shall take into account the size, annual budget, gross receipts, number of598


utility connections and types of utilities within the territory of the local governing599


authority.  Such penalty structure shall also take into account the number of locate600


tickets requests received annually by the local governing authority, the number of locate601


codes made annually to the local governing authority from the UPC, the number of602


utility customers whose service may have been interrupted by violations of this chapter,603







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 18 -


and the duration of such interruptions.  Such penalty structure shall also consider the604


cost of compliance.  The penalty structure shall establish for each tier the maximum605


penalty per violation and per 12 month period at a level to induce compliance with this606


chapter.  Such maximum penalty shall not exceed $5,000.00 per violation or $50,000.00607


per 12 month period for the highest tier.608


(3)  If commission investigators find that a probable violation has occurred, they may609


recommend training in lieu of penalties to any person for any violation.  The commission610


shall provide suggestions for corrective action to any person requesting such assistance.611


Commission investigators shall make recommended findings or offers of settlement to612


the respondent.613


(4)  Any respondent may accept or disagree with the settlement recommended by the614


investigators.  If the respondent disagrees with the recommended settlement, the615


respondent may dispute the settlement recommendation to the advisory committee.  The616


advisory committee shall then render a recommendation either supporting the617


investigators' recommendation, rejecting the investigators' recommendation, or618


substituting its own recommendation.  With respect to an investigation of any probable619


violation committed by a local governing authority, any recommendation by the advisory620


committee shall be in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (2) of this subsection.621


In its deliberations the advisory committee shall consider the gravity of the violation or622


violations; the degree of the respondent's culpability; the respondent's history of prior623


offenses; and such other mitigating factors as may be appropriate.  If the advisory624


committee determines that a respondent has made a good faith effort to comply with this625


chapter, the committee shall not recommend civil penalties against the respondent.  To626


the extent that a respondent does not accept a settlement agreement or request to dispute627


the recommendation of the investigators to the advisory committee, the respondent shall628


be assigned to a hearing officer or administrative law judge.629


(5)  If any respondent disagrees with the recommendation of the advisory committee,630


after notice and hearing by a hearing officer or administrative law judge, such officer or631


judge shall make recommendations to the commission regarding enforcement, including632


civil penalties.  Any such recommendations relating to a local governing authority shall633


comply with the provisions of paragraph (2) of this subsection.  The acceptance of  the634


recommendations by the respondent at any point will stop further action by the635


investigators in that case.636


(6)  When the respondent agrees with the advisory committee recommendation, the637


investigators shall present such agreement to the commission.  The commission is then638


authorized to adopt the recommendation of the advisory committee regarding a civil639


penalty, or to reject such a recommendation.  The commission is not authorized to impose640







14 SB 117/AP 


S. B. 117
- 19 -


a civil penalty greater than the civil penalty recommended by the advisory committee or641


to impose any civil penalty if the advisory committee does not recommend a civil642


penalty.643


(7)  The commission may, by judgment entered after a hearing on notice duly served on644


any person not less than 30 days before the date of the hearing, impose a civil penalty not645


exceeding $10,000.00 for each violation, if it is proved that the person violated any of the646


provisions of this chapter as a result of a failure to exercise additional care in accordance647


with subsection (c) (d) of Code Section 25-9-8 or reasonable care in accordance with648


other provisions of this chapter. Any such recommendations relating to a local governing649


authority shall comply with the provisions of paragraph (2) of this subsection. Any650


proceeding or civil penalty undertaken pursuant to this Code section shall neither prevent651


nor preempt the right of any party to obtain civil damages for personal injury or property652


damage in private causes of action except as otherwise provided in this chapter.653


(i)(j)  All civil penalties ordered by the commission and collected pursuant to this Code654


section shall be deposited in the general fund of the state treasury."655


SECTION 8.656


All laws and parts of laws in conflict with this Act are repealed. 657







1 


 


PROPOSED CHANGES TO WHITE LINING ORDINANCE 


 


1. Adding a subsection (c) to Section 28-230 Definitions to read as follows: 


(c) “Potholing” means digging on locate marks to verify utility location utilizing 


recognized soft digging methods (hand tools, vacuum excavation). 


 


2. Adding a new paragraph (6) to subsection (d) in Section 28-231 White Lining to read as 


follows: 


(6) Local, State and Federal Governmental Agencies. 


3. Adding information to paragraph (3) in subsection (a) of Section 28-232 Facility Marking 


by or for Utilities to read as follows [New information shown as double underlined]: 


 (3) Location marks shall be 4 to 12 inches in length and at intervals of 5 to 10 feet.  If 


the facility to be marked has a greater diameter than 12 inches the size of the facility shall 


be indicated if known.  If size is not known, then the mark shall be greater than 12 inches. 


 [In addition to additional language added to paragraph (3), additional graphic 


representations have been inserted below the language.  Originally, the graphic 


representation consisted only of the left arrow the middle dash and the right arrow (the 


first three symbols with vertical indicator arrows.  The graphics to the right of this are 


new.] 


4. Adding a new Section 28-233 Facility Protection/Damage Prevention Requirements for 


Contractors/Excavators/Utilities to read as follows: 



FJones

Typewritten Text

Section C







2 


 


 (a) All Contractors/Excavators/Utilities shall utilize potholing methods to determine 


facility locations prior to excavating with mechanized equipment. 


 (b) Any person involved in an excavation with mechanized equipment found digging 


or performing land disturbing activities within the “Tolerance Zone” of a facility without 


evidence of “Potholing” will be found to be in violation of this ordinance. 


 (c) The tolerance zone shall be 18” measured horizontally from the outer edge of 


either side of such marked utility facilities. 


 (d) White Lining is a mandatory practice except as stated in Section 28-231 (d) (1), 


(2), (3), (4), (5) and (6). 


 (e) Large Projects within Fayette County shall utilize the marking agreement form 


provided by Fayette County.  Large Project Marking Agreements shall clearly state a 


defined date for marking and construction completion for each section.  Revisions to the 


marking agreement shall be submitted to GA811 and each Utility Owner affected by the 


Large Project. 


5. By adding a new Section 28-234 Stop Work Orders to read as follows: 


  Upon notice from any government official, work shall immediately cease.  Such 


notice shall be given to the person doing the work.  The notice shall state the conditions 


under which work is authorized to resume.  Any person who shall continue any work 


after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is 


directed to perform to rectify the violation, shall be subject to penalties as prescribed by 


law. 







3 


 


 


6. By adding a new Section 28-235 Penalties to read as follows: 


  Any person who violates a provision of this ordinance shall be subject to penalties 


as prescribed by law.  Each day that a violation continues after due notice has been 


served shall be deemed a separate offense.  Multiple offenses can result in revocation of 


the privilege to work within right of ways. 





		Water System- Revised White Lining Agenda Request File

		Water System- Revised White Lining Backup

		Water System- Revised White Lining Backup

		Water System- Revised White Lining Agenda Request File

		Water System- Revised White Lining Agenda Request with Backup

		Water System- Revised White Lining Agenda Request File

		Water System- Revised White Lining Agenda Request with Backup

		Water System- Revised White Lining Agenda Request File

		Water System- Revised White Lining Backup

		Water System- Rescind White Lining Backup-a

		Commissioners- Rescind White Lining Backup-1

		Commissioners- Rescind White Lining Backup-2



		Water System- Rescind White Lining Backup-b

		Water System- Rescind White Lining Backup-c









		Revised White Lining-1












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioner Steve Brown


Recognition of the Starr's Mill Economic Challenge Team for its third consecutive state championship win.


The Economic Challenge team at Starr's Mill High School defended their state championship title for the third consecutive year. The team 


is lead by social studies teacher, Coach Mark DeCourcy.  


 


Participants of the National Economics Challenge answer rigorous questions on microeconomics, macroeconomics, international 


economics, and current events. Individually team members take a microeconomics test and then a macroeconomics test.  A group 


international economics test follows and the top two scoring teams meet in the quiz bowl round to determine the overall winner. 


 


Mr. Nicholas Britt and Austin O'Farrell will attend the meeting to receive recognition.  Other members of the team, namely Lisa Tan, 


Logan Sidall, and Coach DeCourcy will not be able to attend the meeting for recognition. 


 


Recognition of the Starr's Mill Economic Challenge Team for its third consecutive state championship win.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionJune 26, 2014



FJones

Typewritten Text

Presentation/Recognition #2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of a recommendation to amend both the Planning Commission's compensation and the Zoning Board of Appeal's 


compensation to $75.00 per meeting, with said amendments becoming effective January 1, 2015.


On September 28, 1995, the Board of Commissioners increased the compensation for the members of the Planning Commission to $250 


per month.  The members of Zoning Board of Appeals currently earns $50 for each meeting they attend. 


 


Chairman Brown has suggested changing the compensation for Fayette County Planning Commission members to $50 per meeting 


effective January 1, 2015.  This change was recommended to bring the Planning Commission members in-line with the Board of 


Equalization ($67.15 per meeting) and the Zoning Board of Appeals ($50 per meeting.) 


 


In subsequent exchanges, the recommendation has evolved to reducing the compensation of the Planning Commission members to 


$75.00 per meeting while increasing the compensation of Zoning Board of Appeals members to $75.00 per meeting, with said changes 


becoming effective on January 1, 2015. 


 


The county government is aggressive in urging citizens to serve on boards, commissions, and authorities, and strongly encourages 


members to take training related to their posts.  The savings from this proposed change can go towards paying for the continuing 


education of the members.


Consideration of a recommendation to amend both the Planning Commission's compensation and the Zoning Board of Appeal's 


compensation to $75.00 per meeting, with said amendments becoming effective January 1, 2015.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 26, 2014 New Business



FJones

Typewritten Text



FJones

Typewritten Text

New Business #18







1


Floyd Jones


From: Steve Brown


Sent: Tuesday, June 03, 2014 9:14 PM


To: Floyd Jones; Tameca P. White


Cc: Steve Rapson


Subject: New agenda items for the June 12 BOC meeting


 


Floyd, please add the following under new business: 


 


Consideration of change in compensation for Fayette County Planning Commission Members to $50 (fifty-dollars) per 


meeting, effective January 1, 2015. 


 


Upon a thorough review of the drafts for the upcoming Fiscal Year 2015 budget, a suggestion has been made to bring 


the compensation of the Planning Commission Members in-line with the Board of Equalization ($67.15/meeting) and the 


Board of Zoning Appeals ($50/meeting).  One recommendation was that six months notice be given before the change 


from $250/month to $50/meeting takes affect. 


 


The county government is aggressive urging citizens serving on boards, commissions and authorities to take training 


courses related to their posts.  The savings from this proposed change can go towards paying for the continuing 


education. 







1


Floyd Jones


From: Steve Rapson


Sent: Thursday, June 05, 2014 9:26 AM


To: Floyd Jones


Subject: FW: Planning Stipend


FYI 


 


Steven Rapson 


Fayette County  


County Administrator 


srapson@fayettecountyga.gov 


770-305-5100 


 


 


From: Steve Rapson  


Sent: Thursday, June 05, 2014 9:24 AM 
To: Steven Brown 


Subject: Planning Stipend 


 


Honorable Chairman, 


 


What about increasing the ZBA from $50/meeting to $75/meeting and amending the Planning 


Commission from $250/month to $75/meeting – Pete’s suggestion? 


 


Financial Impact – assuming January 1, 2015 implementation. 


 


 
 







2


 


Steven Rapson 


Fayette County  


County Administrator 


srapson@fayettecountyga.gov 


770-305-5100 


 
 





		Commissioners- Planning Commi...ipend Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Planning Commission Stipend Backup

		Commissioners- Planning Commission Stipend-a

		Commissioners- Planning Commission Stipend-b












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Recognition of Financial Analyst Brady Every for being nominate to receive the Team Player Award.


Commissioner David Barlow introduced the Team Player Award for Fayette County employees in December 2013.  The Team Player 


Award is designed to motivate, recognize, and reward outstanding performance and dedicated service as a representative of Fayette 


County.  Nominees are submitted by any Department Head of Fayette County at the consent of the employee's direct Department Head.  


All nominees should demonstrate above average performance in the following areas: 


 


1)  Constantly evaluating what his/her department is trying to achieve. 


2)  Flexible-  can change course as the situation dictates. 


3)  Understands what we all make mistakes and works together to correct mistakes  rather than expose them. 


4)  Understands that not all goals will be accomplished and can prioritize work efforts to accomplish as many achieveable goals as      


possible. 


5)  Maintains a positive attitude, REGARDLESS. 


6)  A consistent spirit of teamwork and cooperation modeled by respectful treatment of others. 


7)  Willingness to make commitments and keep promises in pursuit of team goals. 


8)  Demonstrates interest and concern for other team members and team objectives.


Recognition of Financial Analyst Brady Every for being nominate to receive the Team Player Award.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


The Team Player Award is an initiative started and maintained by Commissioner David Barlow.


Thursday, June 26, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition



FJones

Typewritten Text

Presentation/Recognition #3







Employee Recognition 


 
Nomination Form 


 
I HAVE SUFFIECIENT KNOWLEDGE OF MY NOMINEE AND THEIR PERFORMANCE TO VERIFY THAT S/HE MEETS 
ALL THE CRITERIA OUTLINED IN THE ATTACHED TEAM PLAYER NOMINATION CRITERIA FORM. 
 
 
I hereby submit this nomination for the following employee to receive the TEAM PLAYER award recognition.  I 
understand that only endorsements from a Department Head will be considered for this nomination. 
 
Name of Nominated Employee: ______BRADY EVERY__________ Title: ___FINANCIAL ANALYST_     
 
Department of Nominated Employee:  __________FINANCE______________________________ 
 
Describe how the employee has met the general TEAM PLAYER criteria and why you believe the employee 
deserves the award. 
 
Brady was given a special assignment to create forecasting models patterned from an existing example. This 
was a tedious task which Brady tackled with confidence and perseverance. Models were created for revenues 
and expenses on all major governmental and propriety funds and are being used to estimate year end results. 
Brady was asked numerous times to make adjustments which she always did quickly and with a smile. Brady is 
truly a Rock Star and is a great County employee.   
 
These spreadsheets will prove to be an invaluable resource for Finance and County Administration.  
 
Cite specific incidents that relate to the TEAM PLAYER criteria.  (Attach additional sheet if needed) 
See above.  
 


 
Name of Individual Submitting Nomination: ___MARY S. PARROTT________ Title: _____CFO___ 
 
Department of Individual Submitting Nomination:  _____________FINANCE______________ 
 
Signature of Individual Submitting Nomination:  _______________________________________ 
 
Nominating Individual’s Department Head Endorsement: 
 
__________________________________________________   Date:  _____MARCH 24, 2013____________ 
 
Please submit form to Steve Rapson, County Administrator 





		Commissioners- Team Player Award Agenda Request File

		Commissioners-Team Player Award Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


911 Communications Cheryl L. Rogers


Approval of staff's recommendation to continue the maintenance agreement between Fayette County and Motorola for the 800 MHz 


ASTRO Simulcast System and to authorize the Chairman to sign the renewal contract, in the amount of $505,606.29, for the term of July 


1, 2014 through June 30, 2015.


This annual Service Agreement and Contract Renewal provides for the ongoing maintenance of the Fayette County, Georgia 800 MHz 


ASTRO Simulcast System.  This expense breaks down as follows:  SmartZone 41 System Maintenance ($425,074.14), ITAC 


Maintenance ($8388.56), UPS Maintenance ($22,490.76), MOSCAD / Sirens Maintenance (13,713.77) and Cassidian / PLANT services 


($36,939.07) for a total of $505,606.29.   


 


Motorola is the "proprietary source" of these services due to the nature of the equipment.  Motorola's service technicians not only 


maintain the system, but they have an intimate knowledge of the system since they installed it.  The original contract was approved with 


the implementation of they Simulcast System, and this contract identified the costs for the 2014-2015 term.


Approval of staff's recommendation to continue the maintenance agreement between Fayette County and Motorola for the 800 MHz 


ASTRO Simulcast System and to authorize the Chairman to sign the renewal contract, in the amount of $505,606.29, for the term of July 


1, 2014 through June 30, 2015.


Funds for this renewal are included in the Fiscal Year 2015 Communications M&O budget.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


This request includes a 5% discount, negotiated by County Administrator Steve Rapson and 911 Communications Director Cheryl 


Rogers, of the full contract value of $532,217.15. 


Thursday, June 26, 2014 Consent



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #12







Mailing Addres


 
 
 
 
To:  
 
From:  
 
Date:  
 
Subject: 
 
The county
for various 
support for 
the 800 MH
 
Because of
continuity, t
did not incr
3.2% increa
 
E 9-1-1 Com
Fiscal Year
522232.  Ba
compatibilit
 
Attachment


ss:  140 Stonewal


Steve Ra


Ted L. B


June 10


Maintena


 entered into
technology s
the phone s


Hz channels 


f the nature o
the county d
ease prices 
ase for Fisca


mmunication
r 2015.  Fund
ased on the 
ty, I concur w


t


ll Avenue West, F


apson 


Burgess 


, 2014 


ance Agreem


o maintenan
systems with


system, radio
used for sta


of emergenc
does not solic


for Fiscal Ye
al Year 2015


ns recomme
ds are includ
proprietary 


with their rec


Fayetteville GA 3


ments – E 9


nce and supp
hin the E 9-1
o system, we
atewide mult


cy communic
cit bids from
ear 2014.  A


5 (Please ref


ends renewa
ded in the re
nature of the


commendatio


30214 


11 Commun


port agreem
1-1 Commun
eather siren
i-agency cha


cations, and
m other vendo
As you will se
fer to the att


al of the agre
ecommended
e technology
on. 


Main Phone:  77


nications 


ents in 2004
nications De
s, uninterrup
annels. 


d the need fo
ors for the s
ee, however
tachment). 


eements with
d budget in A
y, and the ne


70-460-5730 


4 with Motor
epartment.  T
ptible power


or compatibil
support servi
r, they have 


h Motorola C
Account #21
eed for cont


Web Sit


ola Corpora
They include
r source, and


lity and 
ices.  Motoro
included a 


Corporation f
1530800-
tinuity and 


 


te:  www.fayettec


tion 
e 
d 


ola 


for 


countyga.gov







Attachment


Proposed
Maintenance Component FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015


SmartZone 4.1. System Infrastructure* 412,693.34  412,693.34  425,074.14   


Uninterruptible Power Source 21,835.68    21,835.68    22,490.76     


ITAC 8,144.22      8,144.22      8,388.56       


MOSCD / Sirens 13,314.35    13,314.35    13,713.77     
Cassidian Svcs (Software / Firmware Support) 34,892.31    34,892.31    35,939.07     


    Total Maintenance Charges 490,879.90  490,879.90  505,606.30   


*Includes ntework monitoring, dispatch service, onsite infrastructure response, 


technical support, infrastructure repair, and network preventative maintenance.


Note: Funds are budgeted in Account 21530800‐522232.


Fayette County, Georgia


E 9‐1‐1 Communications


Motorola Maintenance Agreement









		Communications- Motorola Agenda Request File

		Communications- Motorola Backup

		911COPIER       20140609095603

		Motorola Maint Agreement - Purchasing Backup 1

		Motorola Maint Agreement - Purchasing Backup 2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


911 Communications Cheryl L. Rogers


Consideration of staff's request to upgrade the current 911 Telecommunications Systems from VESTA to VESTA 4.0, for Fiscal Year 


2015, in an amount not to exceed $462,531.00.


The Telecommunications Systems currently in use by the 911 Communications Center was purchased in 2004, and it is coming to its end 


of life in October this year.  The system is at it's full functional capability and cannot be expanded to allow for the new Emergency 


Operations Center or the two additional positions in the radio room.  Since the Emergency Operations Center is the backup location for 


the radio room, it is imperative that it have all the telephonic capability of the actual 911 Communications Center.   


 


Technology has exceed the abilities of the current system to meet expectations of the citizens to provided them with wireless location and 


text to 911 as they have come to expect.  By upgrading the current system instead of purchasing a new system, the County will save 


thousands of dollars by preserving the current operator licenses.  The visual context on the communications officers monitors will provide 


an almost seamless transition for those working in the radio room.   


 


The VESTA system is available under statewide contract with Motorola.  While the contract is under review for extension, it currently is 


set to end on June 30, 2014.  Most of the funding is included in the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, which was scheduled for approval prior to 


this agenda request.  This project has been made part of the CIP budget and will have a total cost of $462,531.00, of which $373,185.00 


will come from 911 Communications and the remaining $89,346.00 coming from Fire and Emergency Services funds.


Consideration of staff's request to upgrade the current 911 Telecommunications Systems from VESTA to VESTA 4.0, for Fiscal Year 


2015, in an amount not to exceed $462,531.00.


Funding will come from the 911 Communications budget and the Emergency Management Agency's M&O budget.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


The upgrade of the VESTA 4.0 System is a Capital Project and is part of the proposed Capital Improvement Project (CIP) Fiscal Year 


2015 Budget.


Thursday, June 26, 2014 New Business



FJones

Typewritten Text

New Business #16







Mailing Addres


 
 
 
To:  
 
From:  
 
Date:  
 
Subject: 
 
E 9-1-1 Com
installed in 
provides ca
 
A new Eme
Communica
event of a d
VESTA sys
operations. 
1-1 Commu
 
The VESTA
under revie
included in 
request.  If 
1-1 and Fire
 
 $37
     8
 $46
 
The Purcha


ss:  140 Stonewal


Steve Ra


Ted L. B


June 26


Upgrade


mmunication
2004.  They


all handling a


ergency Ope
ations Comm


disaster or ot
stem cannot 
 Due to the 


unications is


A system is a
ew for extens


the Fiscal Y
the Board o
e / EMS as f


3,185 E 9-1
9,346 Fire/E
2,531 Total 


asing Depart


ll Avenue West, F


apson 


Burgess 


, 2014 


e VESTA Ca


ns is in need
y currently us
and control, 


erations Cent
mand Center
ther emergen
be expanded
technical na
 requesting 


available un
sion, it curre
Year 2015 bu
f Commissio
follows: 


-1: Fiscal Ye
EMS: Existin
requested fo


tment concu


Fayetteville GA 3


all Take Syst


d of an upgra
se the VEST
dial director


ter (EOC) is 
r.  In addition
ncy, the EOC
d for EOC u
ature and pro
to purchase


der statewid
ntly is set to


udget, which
oners approv


ear 2015 CIP
g EOC proje
or VESTA u


urs with E 9-


30214 


tem 


ade to their t
TA system.  
ry, desktop u


being const
n to being a 
C will serve 
use, as well a
oprietary sys


e an available


de contract w
o end on Jun
h is schedule
ves, the cos


P budget, if a
ect 3753093
pgrade 


1-1’s recomm


Main Phone:  77


telecommun
It is a multi-


user interfac


tructed besid
command-a
as backup fo


as two positio
stems used 
e upgrade to


with Motorola
ne 30, 2014. 
ed for consid
st will be cha


approved (c
30 2930C 


mendation.


70-460-5730 


nications sys
media platfo
e and other 


de the E 9-1-
and-control c
or E 9-1-1.  
ons added to
in telecomm
o VESTA 4.0


a.  While the
 Most of the


deration prio
arged to the 


codes to be a


Web Site:  ww


stem, which w
orm which 
functions. 


-1 
center in the 
The current 
o E 9-1-1 


munication, E
0. 


e contract is 
e funding is 
or to this age
budgets of E


assigned) 


 


ww.fayettecounty


was 


E 9-


enda 
E 9-


ga.gov 







 
 


TO:   Steve Rapson, County Manager 
Ted Burgess, Purchasing Director 


 
FROM: Cheryl Rogers, Communications Director 
 
DATE: June 10, 2014   


 
RE:   Upgrade of 911 Telecommunications System  


 
As the new Emergency Operations Center (EOC) becomes a reality the need to expand the 


911 telephone system to this area becomes a necessity.  Since the new center will be the 


backup for the 911 center it is imperative that the EOC have all the functional capability of 


the actual 911 center.  To this end, 911 center staff have researched the possibilities and 


what we have found is the current system will not expand to allow the introduction of the 


EOC onto the core infrastructure.  In addition the current system is at “end of life” and will 


not be supported after October of this year.  Staff attended several presentations of 911 


systems and  have found that the majority of the systems are using advanced technology 


and incorporate internet technology as a means of meeting public expectation of wireless 


location and text to 911.   


 


With this in mind 911 staff is recommending an upgrade of the current 911 system from 


Vesta to Vesta 4.0.  This upgrade allows us to maintain our operator licenses on all eight 


of our positions free of charge, preserve the visual context on the monitors that the 


communications officers currently use (allowing ease of transition and a fast learning 


curve) and we continue system maintenance under the Motorola Shop (Diversified 


Electronics) we have used for years.  The shop knows our systems intimately and can 


continue to monitor and analyze them for proactive measures instead of reactive ones.  


 


The upgrade can be purchased off of State Contract 980-280008 to ensure the expeditious 


installation of the system to meet the timeline for opening the EOC.  To go out to bid for a 


new system would delay the installation for months.  Upgrading allows us to expand to 


meet the needs of the EOC and add two additional positions in the 911 center while 


causing the least interruption and confusion possible for the communications officers, the 


staff and ultimately our residents.  Staff believes our recommendation to upgrade as 


opposed to an outright purchase is the most economical, expedient and functional 


solution for Fayette County E 9-1-1. 





		Communications- VESTA Upgrade Agenda Request File

		Communications- VESTA Upgrade Backup

		Communications- Motorola Purchasing Backup

		Communications- VESTA Upgrade Backup












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Administration / Finance Steve Rapson / Mary Parrott


Public Hearing on the County's proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 2015 which begins July 1, 2014 and ends June 30, 2015, and 


consideration of Resolution 2014-14 adopting the Fiscal Year 2015 budget.


On June 4, 2014, the Board of Commissioners met with county staff to review the proposed Fiscal Year 2015 Budget.  Then, on June 12, 


2014, the Board held its first of two public hearings on the proposed budget.  Details of the budget are available for public review.  Input is 


welcome. 


 


The Board of Commissioners are requested to formally adopt the Fiscal Year 2015 budget at the conclusion of this second Public 


Hearing. 


 


See attached information.


Hold the second public hearing.  The Board is requested to adopt Resolution 2014-14 establishing the annual operating, capital, and CIP 


budgets for Fiscal Year 2015.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, June 12, 2014


Yes Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, June 26, 2014 Public Hearing



FJones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #7







 STATE OF GEORGIA      


 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 


RESOLUTION NO. 2014-14 


 


 


BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR  2014 – 2015 


 
 


WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia is authorized by 


Georgia law to establish and adopt a budget for the purpose of providing appropriations for the 


proper and orderly operation of government in Fayette County, Georgia. 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the 


Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, that the Fayette County budget for the 


2014-2015 fiscal year be adopted for the purpose of providing appropriations in the following 


amounts for the proper and orderly operation of government in Fayette County: 


                            


TOTAL GENERAL FUND 46,772,641$    


TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 15,741,114      


TOTAL CAPITAL/CIP PROJECTS FUNDS 14,574,344      


TOTAL SOLID WASTE FUND 168,534           


TOTAL STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 550,000           


TOTAL WATER SYSTEM FUND 15,977,214      


TOTAL VEHICLE REPLACEMENT FUND 1,288,116        


TOTAL ALL BUDGETED FUNDS 95,071,963$    
 


    


DULY ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia this 26th day of 


June, 2014.       


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


 


  _____________________________ 


Steve Brown, Chairman 


 


ATTEST: 


 


____________________________ 
Floyd Jones, County Clerk 







FY2015 Budget Proposal
First Public Hearing


June 12, 2014 
7:00 pm


1







Proposed FY2015 Budget 
Objectives Achieved 


� No Deficit Budgeting (no use of unassigned fund balance)


� Continued Commitment to Outstanding Customer Service


� No Property Tax Increase while maintaining Superior Service Delivery 


� Provide County Employees with a 2.0% cost of living adjustment 
(COLA), the last COLA adjustment was given in FY 2008


� Maintain Employee Benefits and build Medical Reserves 
� Medical/Dental/Vision Health Insurance / Funding Stop Loss, CIGNA Run-out, 


Large Claims, Health Stabilization Fund


� Defined Contribution matched up to 2.5% 


� Define Benefit funded at 1.3% vs the 0.6% recommended


� Incentive of 2% of salary one-time payment to County Employees
� Same level of service with less employees


� Incentive contingent upon meeting budget expectations


� Continue Internship Program


2







3


Recommended FY2015 Budget
GENERAL FUND:


General Government 8,999,242$     


Judicial System 4,863,034       


Public Safety 18,726,011     


Public Works 6,148,544       


Health and Welfare 823,649          


Culture and Recreation 2,148,510       


Planning & Development 1,269,934       


Debt Service 3,263,717       


Transfers to Other Funds 530,000          


TOTAL GENERAL FUND 46,772,641$    


SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:


Law Library 62,160$          


State Confiscated Property 17,900           


Emergency Phone E-911 2,970,871       


Jail Surcharge 310,000          


Juvenile Supervision 24,908           


Victims Assistance 129,395          


Drug Abuse and Treatment 352,256          


Fire Services 8,469,346       


Street Lights 325,000          


EMS 3,079,278       


TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 15,741,114$    







4


Recommended FY2015 Budget
ENTERPRISE FUNDS:


Water System 15,977,214$    


Stormwater Management 550,000          


Solid Waste 168,534          


TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS 16,695,748$    


CAPITAL EXPENDITURES/CIP PROGRAM


CAPITAL EXPENDITURES


Governmental Funds 277,295$        


CIP PROGRAM


Governmental Funds 5,559,035       


Enterprise Funds 3,062,014       


Water System Bond 5,676,000       


TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES/CIP PROGRAM 14,574,344$    


TOTAL VEHICLE REPLACEMENT FUND 1,288,116$     


TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 95,071,963$    







5


FY2015 Fund Balance Projections
Estimated 


Fund Balance 


6/30/14


FY 2015 


Revenues


FY 2015 


Expenditures


FY2015 Impact 


to Fund 


Balance


Projected 


Fund Balance 


6/30/15


Governmental Funds


100 General Fund 31,763,190$     47,303,119$ 46,772,641$    530,478$         32,293,668$    


Special Revenue Funds


215 E911 700,709              3,319,200      2,970,871         348,329           1,049,038        


270 Fire Services 2,392,352          8,520,900      8,469,346         51,554              2,443,906        


272 Emergency Medical Services 1,766,666          3,093,450      3,079,278         14,172              1,780,838        


205 Law Library Surcharge 62,940                62,160            62,160               -                         62,940              


210 State Confiscated Property 42,008                17,900            17,900               -                         42,008              


216 Jail Surcharge 123,488              310,000         310,000            -                         123,488            


217 Juvenile Supervision Surcharge 103,670              16,000            24,908               (8,908)              94,762              


218 Victims Assistance Surcharge 870                      129,395         129,395            -                         870                    


219 Drug Abuse & Treatment Surcharge 191,925              352,256         352,256            -                         191,925            


271 Street Lights 183,713              325,000         325,000            -                         183,713            


Total Special Revenue Funds 5,568,341          16,146,261   15,741,114      405,147           5,973,488        


Capital/CIP Projects- Governmental 11,290,671        -                       5,836,330         (5,836,330)      5,454,341        


Total Governmental Funds 48,622,202$     63,449,380$ 68,350,085$    (4,900,705)$    43,721,497$    


Enterprise Funds


505 Water System Net Position M & O 77,907,596        15,977,214   15,977,214      -                         


Water System CIP 150,000            (150,000)          


Water System Bond Projects 5,676,000         (5,676,000)      


Net position 72,081,596      


508 Stormwater  Net Position M & O 595,737              550,000         550,000            -                         


Stormwater CIP 2,461,145      2,912,014         (450,869)          


Net position 144,868            


540 Solid Waste & Recycling Net Position 1,175,930          78,150            168,534            (90,384)            1,085,546        


Total Enterprise Funds 79,679,263$     19,066,509$ 25,433,762$    (6,367,253)      73,312,010      


Vehicle/Equipment Replacement 7,000,691          895,000         1,288,116         (393,116)          6,607,575        


Total All Budgeted Funds 135,302,155$   83,410,889$ 95,071,963$    (11,661,074)$ 123,641,081$ 


Budgeted Funds







General Fund Balance
Financial Projection – FY2014


Fund Balance FY 2013 FY2014


Non-spendable $      148,647 $     0


Committed to:


Stabilization Fund $  10,971,735 $ 11,693,160


Assigned to:


Emergencies $ 2,000,000  $  2,000,000


Stormwater Loan $ 0              $  2,000,000


Capital $        27,149    $      277,295


CIP $  9,131,400   $  8,526,994


Unassigned: $  6,893,001 $   7,265,741


Total Fund Balance      $  29,171,932  $ 31,763,190
6







General Fund
Original Adopted Budget


7


 42,000,000


 43,000,000


 44,000,000


 45,000,000


 46,000,000


 47,000,000


 48,000,000


2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Recommended 2015


Revenue


Expenditures







Proposed FY2015 Budget - Highlights
� General Fund impact from maintenance & operations is a positive $530,478.


� Budget calls for no property tax increase.


� Changes in Personnel levels protect the existing outstanding service delivery to 
our Citizens.


� Budget continues to maintain the commitment to balance current year revenues 
with current year expenses.


� General Fund Assigned Balance will fund Capital/CIP. Restricted Fund Balances 
will fund Capital/CIP for all other funds.


� Funds Healthcare projected run-outs and expected claims, and creates a 
stabilization fund for future claims. 


� Incorporates Defined Benefit Plan funding over recommended levels.


� Maintains Employee Benefits:
� Medical/Dental/Vision Health Insurance


� Define Benefit / Contribution Plan


� County-Wide departmental cooperation has yielded positive results. 


8







Fayette County, GA


Thank you for your attention


9





		Finance- Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Agenda Request File

		Finance- Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Backup

		1

		2









